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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China with full
capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to that
commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
jewellery production facilities in China. With around 729
skilled workers, our facilities are best known for their quality
and ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range
of products.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, Jp
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company"”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the financial year 2016, the Group consolidated
revenue recorded a decline of approximately 24.4% from
last year of HK$730.9 million to HK$552.6 million. During
the year, loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$175.7 million, as compared to the profit attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$141.6 million in last year.
The loss for the year was mainly due to (i) share of loss of
joint ventures of approximately HK$111.8 million arising
on change in fair value of the investment property held by
Group's joint venture, (ii) impairment loss on mining right of
approximately HK$36.4 million; (iii) decrease in revenue and
gross profit of approximately HK$178.3 million and HK$18.3
million; and (iv) unrealised exchange loss of approximately
HK$10.4 million mainly due to declining conversion rate
in British Pound after the Brexit incident. The basic loss per
share was HK2.57 cent (2015: basic earnings per share of
HK2.23 cent).
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The financial year of 2016 was challenging for both the fine
jewellery and diamond polishing business as the gloomy
economic conditions continued to bring difficulties to the
operating environment. Beside the United States (“U.S”)
market showing a relatively mild improvement, the European
countries still face a lot of undetermined factors given the
uncertainties resulting from the Brexit. The softening of
diamond market continues to impact the Group’s diamond
polishing performance. Against this backdrop, customers
were concerned about the slowdown of global economy
and continued to spend cautiously on luxury goods. During
the year under review, the Group’s revenue on trading of
fine jewellery and diamond polishing business recorded a
decrease of approximately HK$172.4 million or 24.1% from
approximately HK$715.6 million for the year ended 30 June
2015 to approximately HK$543.2 million for 2016. Despite
decrease in revenue, the Group managed rigorous cost
control to reduce overall production expenses while providing
more value added services. Such measures benefited the
overall gross profit margin which has increased slightly.
In view of the unfavourable external environment and to
counter the escalating labor cost in the PRC, the Group has
improved operation efficiency and streamline operations
to monitor profit margin. Our Group would continue our
efforts to create better value that best benefit our jewellery
business.

On the property investment side, the property development
project — “Continental Place”, located at No. 236-242
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, with a gross floor
area of approximately 4,515 sg.m., consisting 29 stories of
commercial and retail premises, has completed construction
and obtained the Occupation Permit on 23 September 2016.
An offer of HK$1,133.5 million was accepted in September
2016 with the completion of sale is expected by the end of
2016.
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In PRC, the 50% joint venture development project located
in Yangpu District of Shanghai — “Bauhinia Square” was
completed in December 2015. It is an eleven-floored
shopping mall with total gross floor area of approximately
97,265 sg.m. and over 500 parking spaces. Since its opening
in February 2016, it has attracted a good mixture of retail,
food and beverage, lifestyle tenants. Over 95% of its
retail space is currently occupied and leased out. Bauhinia
Square with the underground subway connected directly
to its basement, consists of a 7 theatres cinema, a full scale
supermarket, a food court and a KTV.

In mining segment, mining operation was suspended as the
previously reported gold resources in the Yuanling site had
been exhausted. The preliminary exploration at the north
eastern part of Yuanling site was completed. A potential new
vein with promising grade had been identified during the
exploration which will continue throughout this year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

It is expected that the Europeans will be more cautious
towards spending on luxury products such as jewellery and
diamonds and the U.S. markets will similarly be challenging.
The slow down of China economic growth will also hinder
global economic recovery and adverse market environment
shall persist. Although the market sentiment remained weak
under slow economic growth, the Group would actively
explore market and business opportunities and focus to
reinforce the Group's market presence in jewellery business.
The Group would optimise internal resources and strengthen
cost control policies to enhance overall profitability. Going
forward, the Group will continue to seek for suitable
investment opportunity in order to generate further profits
and better returns to the shareholders.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 30 June 2016, the Group held an equity interest in
Macarthur Minerals Limited ("MMS"”), MMS is an Australian
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. The
Group holds the interest in MMS for long term investment
and accounted for as a non-current asset as “available-for-
sale financial assets”.

During the year, the fair value of MMS was determined
to be impaired on the basis of significant and prolonged
decline in its fair value below cost. Accordingly, impairment
loss of HK$457,000 (2015: HK$4,834,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The impairment loss was considered
to be an exceptional item and did not have any effect on the
Group'’s cash flows in the financial year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON MINING RIGHT

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the directors of the
Company appointed an independent professional valuer,
Dragon Appraisal Co Limited, to perform a mining right
valuation with respect to the Hongzhuang Gold Mine
situated at Henan Province, China and impairment loss
amounting to HK$36,417,000 (2015: HK$304,707,000) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of Hongzhuang Gold Mine was estimated
based on the Market Based Approach with reference to
comparable transactions, in which such approach was
consistent with mining right valuation as at 30 June 2015.
The key inputs used in the valuation was the consideration-
to-resources multiple obtained from comparable transactions,
the adjusted contained gold metal based on the technical
review report prepared by SRK Consulting China Limited
under Chinese standard.
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The Chinese standard resource estimate as reported by SRK
Consulting China Limited were risk with uncertainty. The
estimated fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine has
assigned lower or no credit to those resources with high
resources risk.

ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2016:

BLgER
Type of E28REE  REED
N BE AR HEAS mining Gold  Reporting EEmiL
Subsidiary Mine field Area  Reporting date operation resources  Standard Gold grade
(ERF#) (W) (% /)
(km?) () (9/t)
BV £ e 109 —F-R"F  #T 1073 RERE 122 5.58
BRAR Hongzhuang ~A=TH Underground PRC 122b
Henan 30 June 2016 546 HEIRE 33 1.89
Multi-Resources PRC 332
Mining Company 2466 HEIRE 333 446
Limited* PRC 333
T# 457 ZT-RF  #T - REIRE 122 -
Yuanling ~A=1H Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2016 - HERE3R3 -

PRC 333

REERER HRFERCDEEE
T BEREE RBEREMNER
ERBR-FHRERER LFHE
B2 E—TFHBFL2HARRH
HR—_T-—TF-A-_tHAZA
BRI Pl 8% = S5 87

* PXEE AR B RREF
(EXES= 0]

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VIl of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2016, the Group had a gearing ratio of 0.32
(2015: 0.25), which is calculated on net debt divided by total
equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum of
bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total cash and cash equivalents were HK$45,632,000 (2015:
HK$55,641,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Bank
loans were HK$571,548,000 (2015: HK$468,634,000),
which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar
(2015: Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi). Other borrowings
in respect of amounts due to related companies and loan
from a controlling shareholder were approximately of
HK$299,760,000 (2015: HK$238,320,000). The bank loans
are secured by first legal charges over the Group's investment
property, property under development, certain leasehold land
and buildings, land use right and guaranteed by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company.

In line with the Group’s prudent financial management, the
Directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2016, the Group's investment property,
property under development, certain leasehold land and
buildings and land use right with an aggregate net carrying
value of HK$1,065,250,000 (2015: HK$1,010,271,000) were
pledged to certain banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar. Interest is determined on the basis of Hong
Kong Interbank Offering Rate or Prime Rate for Hong Kong
Dollar borrowings. The Group also made use of foreign
exchange forward contracts in order to minimize exchange
rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound. There
was no change to the Group’s capital structure during the
year ended 30 June 2016. In light of the current financial
position of the Group and provided there is no unforeseeable
circumstance, the management does not anticipate the need
to change the capital structure.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 3 August 2015 and 2 October 2015, Propway Limited
("Propway"”), a company beneficially owned by Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin, Shirley ("Ms. Cheng”), an executive director of the
Company, as the lender and the Company, as the borrower
entered into facility agreements, for providing facilities in the
amount of HK$30,000,000 and HK$60,000,000 respectively
to the Company. The facilities are unsecured, with interest-
bearing at 2.1% and 2.4% per annum and repayable on
30 July 2016 and 30 September 2016 respectively. On
1 June 2016, Propway and the Company entered into
supplemental facility agreements to extend the repayment
date of the facilities to 30 July 2017 and 30 September 2017
respectively.

NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS

1. Facility Agreement with a Joint Venture

On 8 July 2015, 13 November 2015 and 13 May
2016, Master Gold Development Limited (“Master
Gold"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the Lender entered into facility agreements with
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”),
a joint venture of the Company as the borrower,
for providing facilities up to HK$50,000,000,
HK$61,500,000 and HK$37,000,000. These facilities
were used as working capital for the development
and repayment of bank loans in respect of “Bauhinia
Square” in Shanghai. The details of these facility
agreements were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 8 July 2015, 13 November 2015 and
13 May 2016 and circular of the Company dated 30
November 2015.
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2. Provision of Guarantee in Favour of a Bank

On 11 March 2016, the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a new guarantee agreement to
guarantee up to 50% of an additional term loan
facility granted by a bank to a subsidiary of a joint
venture of the Company (“JV Subsidiary”).

The JV Subsidiary entered into a supplemental facility
agreement (“March 2016 Facility Agreement”)
with a bank to provide a term loan facility of
RMB110,000,000. As a result, the Company was
required to provide guarantee of RMB55,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$66,000,000),
representing up to 50% of the new facility, to
secure for the due and punctual performance of all
obligations of the JV Subsidiary under the March 2016
Facility Agreement. The details of the provision of
guarantee were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2016.

ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
AND RELATED COMPANIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Company had outstanding loan of
HK$127,000,000 due to Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr.
Chan”). The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per
annum, of which i) HK$90,000,000 is due for repayment
on 30 September 2017, and i) HK$37,000,000 is due for
repayment on 5 October 2017. Dr. Chan also advanced
a loan in the amount of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,670,000) to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, the loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 25 October 2017.

As at 30 June 2016, an amount of HK$131,670,000 remains
outstanding owed by the Group to Dr. Chan.
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As at 30 June 2016, total principal amount of
HK$92,728,000 remains outstanding owed by the Group to
companies which Dr. Chan is a key management personnel/
ultimate beneficial owner. These loans are unsecured and
interest free and repayable within one to three years.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company had outstanding loans of
HK$30,000,000 and HK$60,000,000 due to Propway. These
loans are unsecured, interest-bearing at 2.1%and 2.4% per
annum and repayable on 30 July 2017 and 30 September
2017 respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Company has provided guarantees
to the extent of HK$571,548,000 (2015: HK$468,634,000)
with respect to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Guarantee to
the extent of RMB371,537,000 (equivalent to approximately
to HK$433,769,000) (2015: RMB335,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$423,809,000)) was also given by the
Company in favour of a bank in respect of the term loan
facilities granted to a subsidiary of a joint venture of the
Company. Under the guarantees, the Company would be
liable to pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover the
loans. At the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s
obligation under the guarantee contract has been made as
the directors considered that it was unlikely the repayment of
the loans would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2016, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$13,753,000 (2015:
HK$81,401,000), which was mainly the capital commitments
for the properties under development undertaken by the
Group and a joint venture attributable to the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

1.

On 9 September 2016, the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a new guarantee agreement to
guarantee up to 50% of a term loan facility granted
by a bank to the JV Subsidiary.

The JV Subsidiary entered into a facility agreement
("Facility Agreement”) with a bank to provide a
term loan facility of RMB773,300,000. As a result,
the Company was required to provide guarantee
of RMB386,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$448,514,000), representing up to 50% of the
new facility, to secure for the due and punctual
performance of all obligations of the JV Subsidiary
under the Facility Agreement. The details of
the provision of guarantee were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 September
2016.

On 19 September 2016, the Group had entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”)
with an independent third party relating to dispose of
100% equity interest of Well Friendship Investment
Limited (“Well Friendship”) (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), which holds the Group’s
investment property and property under development,
at total consideration of HK$1,133,500,000, subject
to certain adjustment in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement. The details of the disposal were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
September 2016.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES
AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group employs a total of approximately 968 employees
with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration to
its employees is largely based on common industrial practice.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13
July 2010, under which, the Company may grant options to
eligible persons including directors and employees.

The purpose of the share option scheme is (i) to recruit
and retain high calibre eligible persons and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group; (i) to recognize the
contributions of eligible persons to the growth of the Group
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme was 232,830,334 which represented 3.41%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
annual report. The number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company's
shares in issue at the adoption date.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of
the Company shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending 12 July 2020, after which no
further options will be granted. 80,000,000 share options
were granted pursuant to the scheme since its adoption and
up to 30 June 2016.

As at 30 June 2016, 80,000,000 share options have been
granted to certain directors of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.138, HK$0.121 or HK$0.245 each subject
to the terms of the Company's share option scheme.
10,000,000 share options have been exercised during the
year ended 30 June 2015 since the grant of the share
options. Details of movement of the share options up to 30
June 2016 are set out below:

TE-BEREEE T RFH

=THRZEBFFEHINWNT:
BREHE
Number of share options
~ RIZ-31% RZF—7E
~ BEHAH tA-H _ ~A=+H
REARE (B/R/&) friEHl BRITHEE &R RERERY REATE ZH
Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Date of Grant Exercisable Exercise Price as at during during as at
Name of Grantee (dd/mm/yyyy)  period per Share 1 July 2015 the year the year 30 June 2016
(%7)
(HKS)
BREN L4 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
REHL+ 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
FELEE 07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Yam Tat Wing 06/07/2025
HERAE 25/07/2014 25/07/2014 - 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Wong Edward 24/07/2024
Gwon-hing
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
30,000,000 40,000,000 - 70,000,000

AR EBEAEE —FFBER
RAEPBREME=1T/\-

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group had entered into certain foreign
exchange forward contracts in order to minimise the
exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound.
Management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
risk in British Pound and recent fluctuation in Renminbi and
will take appropriate actions when necessary.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Tuesday, 29 November 2016 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 25 November 2016 to Tuesday, 29
November 2016, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24
November 2016.
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S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
RABRREFTEUAEEZERE On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
ABRETBHREREE T gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
EPHAEEERGE TELOEX for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
o URKRRES TEBRFRE their confidence and support for our products, and our
EYUROHE - shareholders for their trust and support.

REES® On behalf of the Directors

FE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

BREEE Chairman

BE ZE-R"FAAZTNH Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is the Chairman
and Founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorship in various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for strategic
planning, corporate development and investment of the
Group. Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the
jewellery industry. He is currently the Honorary Permanent
President of the Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association; Honorary Member of Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Appointed Member and Institutional
Advancement and Outreach Committee Member of the
University Court of The Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology, Member of Product Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
as well as a member of other trade associations. In
community, charitable and political involvements, Dr. Chan
is the Permanent Honorary Director of Friends of Hong
Kong Association Ltd., and Member of The Association
of Chairmen of The Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr.
Chan was appointed a Committee Member of the City of
Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
since 2003; and the Founding President of Jiangmen
Overseas Chinese Enterprise Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director and
Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive Director
of the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for the daily operations,
financial management, corporate development, sales and
marketing as well as strategic planning of the Group. Ms.
Cheng has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry and has been actively involved in the business
development of the Group since the beginning. Ms. Cheng
also plays an active role in the community, currently 2nd
Vice President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2016-2018),
and Executive Committee and Honorary Vice President of
the Hong Kong Federation of Women. In addition, she was
awarded as one of the “100 Chinese Outstanding WWomen
Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and was a Committee Member of
the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute
of America. She is Charter President of Zonta Club of
Hong Kong Il and Area Director of Zonta International
(2010-2012), actively involved in the Zonta Community. She
is also a member of Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Association. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He is
an Executive Director of the Company and currently manages
the daily operations of the Group activities. He is responsible
in various aspects of the Group such as sales and marketing,
product development and innovation, investment activities,
finance, as well as corporate and business development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
including as the President of Entrepreneurs’ Organization
(Hong Kong and China South Chapters); the Vice Chairman
of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association; the Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter
of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council; Member of
the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council; and the Executive Committee member
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He was appointed
as a committee member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is
also a Director of Hong Kong United Youth Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
has a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.
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Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in 1998,
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
on 1 March 2014. He is also the General Manager of
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr. Wong has over
30 years experience in manufacturing, sales marketing and
management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible
for overall development and management of Group's
jewellery business.

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 1
March 2014. He is also the General Manager — Business
Development and Mining of the Group and is responsible
for overseeing all mining and property investment operations
devising corporate strategy. Mr. Yam was educated up to
matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, He was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.

During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an Affiliated Fellow of
Wu Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
for a term of five years. The appointment has been extended
for another term of five years in August 2016. He was also
appointed as Executive Board member, Hong Kong Air Cadet
Corps with effect from 2 December 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 35 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007. Mr. Yu
is the Chairman and an Executive Director of K. H. Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code:1557), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies. Mr.
Chan is a Director of a private company engaging in logistics
and forwarding.
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Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985.
Mr. Sze has extensive experience in investment and
corporate management and is currently a Non-executive
Director of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3778), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
and an Executive Director of a private company, Hang
Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship
in various private companies. Mr. Sze is a member of the
National Committee and an executive member of the Beijing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and currently the Permanent Honorary President
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
He is also elected as a member of Election Committee of
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of Peace and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015
respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr.
Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3778). He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1557), both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor
at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004
to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an Executive Director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial
Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an
Independent Director of LJ International Inc., a company
listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007.
From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr. Cheung was a
Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation, in charge of value-added telecommunications
services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG
(Diamond), joined the Group in 1987, is the Head of Group
Operations. He has over 25 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the

jewellery industry. He holds gemmologist qualification, and

is fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain;
director of The Gemmological Association of Hong Kong;
and appointed as RPL Assessor at Qualifications Framework
by Vocational Training Council. Currently, Mr. Choi oversees
the daily operation, information & technology, administration
and human resources of the Group. He is also in charge of
the China retail operations and the implementation of ISO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined the Group in 1976,
is the Head of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in
managing jewellery factories. He has extensive knowledge
in all production aspects as well as in logistic management.
Currently, he oversees the daily operations of the jewellery
factories in China.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2016, the Company has complied with the
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 and E.1.2 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing them.
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EEEREEZT—R"EFA=T The Board held six meetings during the financial year ended

HIEFHRFERERNRITT NRGH 30 June 2016. Attendance of individual Director at the Board
HE-_ZT-—R"FAA=THILEMK meetings, other Board Committee meetings and the annual
FE EX99% EFT9ETAM general meeting of the Company held on 27 November
ZEEERNMARFIN_ZE—N1F 2015 (“2015 AGM") during financial year ended 30 June

+—AZ+tHBOZREAFK 2016 are as follows:
e ([ZZ—hFEREAFKE])F
BREEZHFEBRAT

BHUEBITRH
Meetings Attended / Held
—F-1%
ENZEE HMZEE RREZEg BR
Exggi - - - BEXE
2015
Meetings of ~ Meetingof ~ Meeting of Annual
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
= Director Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
REEE L o5 ATET Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, Bgs, Jp 6/6 - - o1 o1
g/t Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 6/6 - 1n - 1
BREHTT Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 6/6 - - - 1
RELLE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 6/6 - - - 1
HERRE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing 6/6 - - - 1n
EEEEE Mr. Yam Tat Wing 6/6 - - - 1n
HHTEE Non-executive Director
bl [P Mr. Fang Gang* o1 - - - o1
BUIFRITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
KRR  8es MBE AF4+  Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, Jp 6/6 20 17 - 17
BRmE Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 6/6 20 7 1 1n
MESRIRL A  Bes AT &L Mr. Sze Irons, B8s, JP 5/6 20 17 - 17
REBLAE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 6/6 22 - 17 1N
* TR EB BTN ITESRH * Mr. Fang Gang has resigned as Non-executive Director with
% HATE-RFNAZTHEAR effect from 25 September 2015.
R
EFeCTHeRRIECER KFE Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
HEFRETE- regular Board meetings.
BRESFeTHeRcAHE T Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
THAR%E ?JF NEERESEE 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
HeErERE EXNMAEMES Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
gex lertBRERNE LA meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
AMEF o
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Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.
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Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr. Chan") is the Chairman of
the Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group
and also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that
the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”).

Ms. Cheng is the Managing Director of the Company. She is
responsible for day-to-day management and the marketing
activities of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element
on the board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient
calibre and number for their views to carry weight.
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As at 30 June 2016, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki, Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, Mr. Wong Edward
Gwon-hing and Mr. Yam Tat Wing; four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai,
Frank. All Directors are expressly identified by categories of
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors,
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng and Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor are the daughter and
son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng. Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki is the sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 24 to 29 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.

A.4. Appointments, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.
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Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company do
not have a specific term of appointment but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Board considers that
the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1 is not material
as Independent Non-executive Directors are subjected to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years and
re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company'’s Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul has served as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than nine
years. In addition to his confirmation of independence
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Yu
continues to demonstrate the attributes of an Independent
Non-executive Director by providing independent views and
advice and there is no evidence that his tenure has had any
impact on his independence. Mr. Yu was re-appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company at
the 2014 AGM and the Directors are of the opinion that
he remains independent notwithstanding the length of his
service and they believe that his valuable knowledge and
experience continue to generate significant contribution to
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities and
development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board,
non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 30 June 2016 is as follows:

BEREMT#L
HRARER
EHER
HEmE
Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates*/
Attending
Directors seminar
Executive Directors
Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp v
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing v
Mr. Yam Tat Wing v
Non-executive Director
Mr. Fang Gang
(Resigned with effect from
25 September 2015) v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP v
Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v
# Reading materials concerning latest developments in
corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory

developments.

At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to
the Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company has received written confirmation from
all the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning
their independence. The Board considers all of them are
independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. All
Independent Non-executive Directors have attended the
2015 AGM.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors” remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2016 to discuss remuneration related matters
and review the remuneration policy of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2016 is set out below:

AE
R 48 B Number of persons
Emolument bands 2016 2015
=% 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 2 2
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2016, the Directors have made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 62 to
63 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2016.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 23 under Chairman’s Statement.



Corporate Governance Report m X E 4R

EXZgATEH BWELABMNE
FERBEHmE  HES R EK
RER 2BEMRELETRABRE
ATHREZEBTBHEER  ARR
EEERICBREENERBEE
MEATHREZER -

C.2. AEPESIE

EEgRBARITANAIEZER
miRzEMAAR URERR
MIRENBEITANEE-

EXQCARERLEERIAE
BN EERG AR -EFE
EREEERIERFEZRBER
ZNHEZE - AEBERNIPERE (B
RSB REHRER) ARERE
BT HRFEEET -HTRA
R NI IR S EB R E
Z 2 BT E A Rihin m e
EEeRRAUBERIR 2E I
Ep 0] FHcE s RIREGEE B
i

C3.ERZEES

ESERILNAERMBERLA
0 BS 122 R Bl N AR {A] e 15 L 31T A #%
SREDIE & BRI R B R B
B RE EMHRAURINE
ZERBEBEARBWHBERLE -

ARREKUBEERZES WUE
] R E B E - BT BE R
BEBE - BERZES 2 BESE
B35 57 Rl 2 57 AR 3XC.3.3(a) E (n)
PREl Bt WREELMBEZEE
EFT-BMAEERZBE RN NRER
BENEEZKETBESE T
N EN YN NN D

The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Internal Controls

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.
The Board requires management to establish and maintain
sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation of the
Group's internal controls covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions had
been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of internal controls on
different systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis
based on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company'’s independent auditor.

For the year ended 30 June 2016, save as the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has paid approximately
HK$64,000 in relation to the non-audit services (including
other reporting services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.



Corporate Governance Report m X E 4R

ENZEQUEEREARRREIR
BEZRIEARA -

BERZBENETERAERCER
HERER BREBIZBMZE
EIO

D.1. AL

BITARE —EEANTEER S
JHEH REEEHENSTH-B
SERAREREEERLERRA
ERBEESHEMR T AIRKRE
TTALELIRE -

EECREHIEARE 2 ERE
B R MBI AR B 2 RIR -
BEZEEREEAEE ZXEK

R

b
B
o

BEFSRHERE TR maE
WERTEEER REREREE
RN B TEWEES KRR E
BEERANESGERUNRERRAE
R AENE AR TE SR S ATl R
FIERSESSHESEE @ -

ARRAEREETEFTESFTSR
EFH-ESENTHRIEHEL
P AREREBES —HEE T AN

SERZ-
D2 EFEETREES
EXeE TRL8anNIETA

EHMFERERE BEIHE
BeROLBE-

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees
Board committees should be formed with specific written

terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.
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The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2015 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2015 AGM are
disclosed on page 31.
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Code Provision E.1.2 provides that Chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. Due to personal reason, Dr. Chan,
Chairman of the Board could not attend 2015 AGM and Mr.
Chan Wai Lap, Victor, an Executive Director of the Company
chaired the 2015 AGM. All of the Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors were present at the
2015 AGM and were available to answer questions. Apart
from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.
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F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’'s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2016, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
of Association during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transaction by Directors of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2016.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2016 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 64 to 226.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 23 of
this Annual Report.
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FTERREBEAREEY PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
BERIBRERITHRER 1. Economic climate and individual market performance
HRAKRERBAREEZHE As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
oo ERIRE R KBEIRIEY products, the impact of global financial and economic
HEEGEORBE hZZE conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
AT EARAEE 2 HERR power would affect sales and results of the Group.
N 2EE - REEM RIS EE The economic growth or decline in our geographical
BRIMELHEEKREH markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
By BN ELREE would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
Z WS o BN - BB IRIR Al B addition, economic environment would affect the
HERBITEZEEMAE production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
WMiE  FIWA BRKE labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.
BIPAR T o
MERHE KEREEETE In property side, economic climate directly affects
MEEE REEHAEERY the value of properties and investors’ interest in
¥HEBzHEHBLHESWA - our property projects and rental income. Rising
BREERAN ~ BB TR RATRHE construction costs, labour costs and material prices
BEAYETETKYEER will affect the budget and the timing for completion
BrzEE KERExK- of the property projects.
FEBZRBEXEBFTERK The Group’s mining business requires substantial
W& - BRVBENTERM investment and may not achieve expected financial
FRE-BABRKE R E results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
RERIR MBS 2 RE affect prospects of the investments and impairment
AR ERBEEEZ(ME- of the mining business may affect the valuation of
REERESESEEEE mining assets. The risk of loss of asset value such
BRRERENEI2ZEESF3 as impairment loss on mining right is set out in the
BZFRMEAN- Chairman’s Statement on page 12 to page 13.
™5 Rk 2. Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FTEMBFERIEE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEUBEREEONET The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2016 2015 +/(-)
F#ET FET 23
HK$000 HK$000 Change
R E FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Wz Revenue 552,575 730,900 -24.4%
EME(%) Gross profit margin (%) 15.7% 144% 1 3ppBA D E
HBRF S KA AT &R EBIT
([EBITJ) (170,038) 78,715 -316.0%
EBITEL 3 (%) EBIT margin (%) -30.8% 10.8% -41.6ppE 7D 2
RATHEEAEL (Loss)/Profit attributable to the
(B8),/&F owners of the Company (175,666) 141,571 -224.1%
CREE) /BFI%E(%) Net (loss)/profit margin (%) -31.8% 194% -512ppBE D%
1BE E 13 (%) Return on total assets (%) -5.8% 25% -83ppENEH
ITEMHEE KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
RekBRe% R Cash and cash equivalents 45,632 55,641 -18.0%
MEEERE Net current assets 176,438 292,463 -39.7%
BEER Total assets 2,954,644 3,097,489 -4.6%
BiEER Total liabilities 1,230,703 1,099,418 11.9%
BITER Bank loans 571,548 468,634 22.0%
ANREEA AFEIGHEZE  Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 1,730,097 2,004,201 -13.7%
Behx Cash ratio 0.06 0.08 -25.0%
BN (%) Current ratio (times) 1.23 1.42 -13.4%
BEABHE Gearing ratio 0.32 0.25 28.0%
P B A 2 81 S (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (%) -10.2% 71% -17.3ppBA D2
FREK(BE),/ Basic (loss)/earning per share
ZF (L) (HK cent) (2.57) 2.23 -215.2%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries of
the Company is a certified member of the Responsible
Jewellery Council (“RJC"). RIC is a not-for-profit
organization which promotes responsible ethical,
social and environmental practices, which respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope conform to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration of its employees and ensures that it is
up to prevailing market standard.

The Group values mutually-beneficial and long-standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing mutual trust with its suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2016, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$208,943,000 (2015:
HK$201,822,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
228.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$62,000.



Directors’ Report m EEERE

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—R"EFRA=ZTHLFE

TEERRMER

REBFEAN REBRAKRKEPG
AFEEHEBBEZ4T% MEF K
AREFFLEEREAR1T% - AKX
RAREER D RGNS B AFER
BEAR%A 2 29% K 69% °

BARREEZMM EF RFEKE
ZMBARBEZMAHERANAA]
5% A £ B BT Z EAIAR - 31
BRAKRBRRER LR+ %
B EmEmD-

5

REERBEARREBMARFZ
EEREWMT:

YITESE:

PREZVEIE £ BBS AT+ (/)
BR/NR I (B EmasE)
PREHZZ+

PRIESL ST A

mEERELAE

EER LA

FHTES:
73 W 5 A
(RZZ—AFNA-+THHEHE)

BUFHTES:

B K S - BBS  MBE» A4+
PR IA A 55 A

Mo SRR S 0 BBS AT 4L
REEELE

KIBABERZMAE—BZTNIE-
E-B—THRHAOKERE-—B—TH
DOERTE B/ NFELLt REHL
T RERELEBRBRRBAFRE
FHERT FEHFRERTR
g FERET

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 47% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 17%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 29% and 69%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

Mr. Yam Tat Wing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Fang Gang
(Resigned with effect from 25 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank

In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A) and 115(D) of the
Articles of Association, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Ms. Chan
Wai Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek shall retire
from office by rotation and all of them are eligible for re-
election at the AGM.
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Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to
29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for directors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 20 and 21 and in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

1. Mr. Fang Gang has resigned as a Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25
September 2015.

2. During the year, the following Independent Non-
executive directors has held other directorships in
public companies the securities of which are listed in
Hong Kong:

- Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Cheung Chi
Fai, Frank, both Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, were appointed
Executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director respectively of K.H. Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1557), which
was listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from 18 March 2016.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company’s holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests
of directors of the Company in businesses which might
compete with the Group during the year ended 30 June
2016 and as at 30 June 2016 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of gold mining activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and
Indonesia. Although some of the businesses carried out by
these companies are similar to those of the Group, they are
of different scale and at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
set out below:

HARQR

23T

AnAZEERSE BAESL

Number of ordinary shares of the Company Percentage of

BAREE NEER L 3 the Company's

Personal Corporate Underlying @ issued share

EEHA Name of Directors interest interest interest Total capital

BREE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%

(BEET) (Note 1)
&/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
(BEFET) (Note 1)

B Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 200,000 - - 200,000 0.003%

WRE Chan Wai Lap, Victor 2,700,000 - 20,000,000 22,700,000 0.33%
(PBEE2) (Note 2)

REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.29%
(PBiEF2) (Note 2)

fFEg Yam Tat Wing 2,400,000 - 10,000,000 12,400,000 0.18%
(PBEE2) (Note 2)

HER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.29%
(BiEF2) (Note 2)

st S s mRE LIRSt
E¥EAH 7 AT Tamar Investments
Group Limited$ 4 °

fiiE2 - RS RaREFER ZBREY
S PANNCIL El LS e

Note 1: Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group Limited,
which is a company wholly-owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng.

Note 2: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares
of the Company in respect of share options granted to the
Directors.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2016, no person, other than Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, had registered an interest in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group, continued to exist as at 30 June
2016. The financial assistance, in aggregate, represent
approximately 37.9% under the assets ratio as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

The amounts of the financial assistance as at 30 June 2016
were set out below:

Wealth Plus Developments Limited
(TWealth Plus ] ) R KL 8 22 ]
Wealth Plus Developments Limited

("Wealth Plus”) and its subsidiary
Pt

1. BTBRRERIBRIERERL
R BE LM SRR EEnER
BEED HMABEZBRRERK
B AR B N B R E K
Hio

2. AN B ghfE FWealth PlusiE T —
B A A2 7 B kM — R R
T2 £ A R #390,000,0007T (48
£ #9455,325,00058 7T ) Z FER
AR #670,000,0007T & A R
110,000,0007C /& B E X 2 & 1R HA
PRE_E——F+—A+ S EBRE
TE-RFEZA=+—BHZERE
WA A=A F-

KEEBF REEX MHEEE
ZEhL#ES BEK k)
Attributable  Shareholder's NEER Aggregate
interest held loan or Corporate financial
by the Group advances guarantee assistance
BT BT BT
HKS HK$ HKS
50% 664,640,000 455,325,000 1,119,965,000

(BEED) (F5E2)

(Note 1) (Note 2)

Notes:

1. The shareholder’s loan or advances had been granted as

working capital for the development of the construction
site located in Yangpu District, of Shanghai in the PRC. The
outstanding shareholder’s loan or advances is interest free,
unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

2. A guarantee to the extent of RMB390,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$455,325,000) was given by the Company in
favour of a bank in respect of the term loan facilities granted
to a subsidiary of Wealth Plus. The guarantee period last for
three to five years from the date of the first drawdown on
16 November 2012 and on 31 March 2016 in relation to the
term loan facilities of RMB670,000,000 and RMB 110,000,000
respectively.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES (continued)

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position
of the joint venture and the Group’s attributable interests in
these affiliated companies based on their latest consolidated
financial statements available are presented below:

et AER

B # R & Bl Z#Es

Combined Group's

statement of attributable

financial position interest

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

EMBEE Non-current assets 2,353,626 1,176,813
MBEE Current assets 60,913 30,457
mENBE Current liabilities (202,867) (101,434)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (2,123,691) (1,061,846)
BEFE Net assets 87,981 43,990

BRI — T HBHINNER A MR
EMEET Lo

BMEALSS
MEA+Z5 (TEREEALS

5) Z HEBFIR A B 8 e K
St =R -

Further details are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in notes
30, 34 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NRFEBREZTREREE SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BERRR A AFESGZER RE Based on the information that is publicly available to the
BESFH RAmE R AAF] Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
EEITRABEEL25%HARA 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by
THA- the public as at the date of this report.

REBHHEER EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
HwEBBREZERNFEFBHIR Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
FEMBmENTEAT- out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

% S Em AUDITOR

RARREERRBESEKE L KiE A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the

ERBR UETZAZEBMES Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.
VIERERGEREBMAR AR -

REESE On behalf of the Directors

Eay Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BREEE Chairman

B —E-R"FALAZTNA Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereafter referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 226,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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2016 2015
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
W & Revenue 6 552,575 730,900
BHE R A Cost of sales (465,581) (625,582)
EF Gross profit 86,994 105,318
$HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (22,855) (25,097)
1TEE A Administrative expenses (103,583) (103,232)
H g A Other operating income 7,112 42,635
KEMFEAFEZE Change in fair value of
investment property 16 11,112 333,454
AHEEZSRMEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
R EEE financial assets 20(b) (457) (4,834)
EEAHEE 2SR Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
BEZEE financial assets = (549)
PRIBAE R EE 1R Impairment loss on mining right 17 (36,417) (304,707)
Yz - B KRG Impairment loss on property,
BB R plant and equipment 14 (944) (8,408)
TSR IR B BB Income arising from amortising the
FrEE 2 WA financial guarantee liabilities 3,167 2,884
VAR AD 2 B0 2 =R B Share-based compensation 38 (2,390) (470)
LD ®N Finance costs 7 (16,017) (13,557)
EihaEhEXEE Share of results of joint ventures (111,777) 41,721
I‘? FriS®iar (BH]) HEF (Loss)/Profit before income tax 8 (186,055) 65,158
Fristif e Income tax credit 9 10,363 76,179

£N (BR) EH (Loss)/Profit for the year (175,692) 141,337
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
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2016 2015
HtsE Fi#T FET
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Hih 2w IR HIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
HEAEMNEZEEZEZ Items that may be subsequently
HR: reclassified to profit or loss:
AIHEEZSBMEENTFE  Change in fair value of available-for-
Pk = sale financial assets 1,341 (5,480)
RAHEE B E Reclassification from equity to profit
BERBERENSE or loss on impairment of available-
Zi8m for-sale financial assets 457 4,834
REERHEE 2SR Release upon disposal of available-
& e for-sale financial assets = 1,105
MEGINETS - B QT Exchange differences on translation
keEeh¥r of foreign operations, associates
bE 5 =58 and joint ventures (110,258) 8,200
FRNHMMEEE f0BRFIE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax (108,460) 8,659
FRNEERFHEE Total comprehensive income
for the year (284,152) 149,996
FEIGE P (BE18) i Fl (Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:
KAEER A Owners of the Company (175,666) 141,571
FEPE RS Non-controlling interests (26) (234)
(175,692) 141,337
FEMLF N EEITFRE: Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
RRARER A Owners of the Company (284,126) 150,230
FEFE B Non-controlling interests (26) (234)
(284,152) 149,996
v NCTE 2PN L (Loss)/Earnings per share for
(B1]) EHz (loss)/profit attributable to M BN
B (&BE) BH the owners of the Company 11 HK cent HK cent
— K — Basic (2.57) 2.23
—#E — Diluted (2.57) 2.07
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As at 30 June 2016
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AREBARR R

2016 2015
Kzt F#ET FEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y BB KRR E Property, plant and equipment 14 94,431 104,255
T+ b R Land use rights 15 34,687 38,784
"EME Investment property 16 472,930 446,040
FRIE R Mining right 17 656,334 751,427
)‘5’\%%’& 7] B A Interests in associates 18 = =
ReE&ELE R Interests in joint ventures 19 708,636 748,386
TT/\ HEZEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 22,393 21,052
& B PR GRIR Long-term receivables 21 - =
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 35 5,762 5,932
1,995,173 2,115,876
MENEE Current assets
BERPYIE Property under development 22 576,843 546,497
ﬁ‘b Inventories 23 221,799 218,483
B 5 e GRIE Trade receivables 24 93,231 116,380
TE\1—JL/T>)\IE h?é’i& Prepayments, deposits and
b fE U FRIE other receivables 17,478 38,431
AR FER ABz= Financial assets at fair value
ZEREE through profit or loss 25 4,222 6,026
TESmITE Derivative financial instruments 31 99 =
B UL — B = A T?’AIE Due from an associate 18 = =
YA & FER Due from joint ventures 19 167 155
Iﬁiﬁiﬁ,iv%ﬁ Cash and cash equivalents 26 45,632 55,641
959,471 981,613
mEAE Current liabilities
= AN Trade payables 27 (126,705) (140,397)
H b RIB K BT E A Other payables and accruals (75,948) (68,797)
RITE K Bank loans 28 (571,548) (468,634)
RLE T & AR Obligation under finance leases 29 (379) (359)
JEAS REE A Al 5kIE Due to related companies 30 (2,744) (3,099)
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 31 = (16)
M EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 33 (3.411) (3,086)
THIE R Provision for tax (2,298) (4,762)
(783,033) (689,150)
REEEREE Net current assets 176,438 292,463
BEERTHER Total assets less current liabilities 2,171,611 2,408,339
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2016 2015
k23 Fi#&T FHETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
EREBAE Non-current liabilities
R & T B AIE Obligation under finance leases 29 (691) (1,070)
FEAS REE A B 5RI8 Due to related companies 30 (165,346) (82,161)
HEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities 33 (2,245) (4,115)
IR R 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (131,670) (153,060)
FEEHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 35 (147,718) (169,862)
(447,670) (410,268)
BEEFE Net assets 1,723,941 1,998,071
= EQUITY
[N Share capital 36 560,673 560,673
(] Reserves 37 1,169,424 1,443,528
KRB HER NELRE = Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 1,730,097 2,004,201
Ik I HE 2 Non-controlling interests (6,156) (6,130)
R Total equity 1,723,941 1,998,071
REESFZ On behalf of the Directors
BREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
Bl /) % Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EZE Director
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2016 2015
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
RELEBHERE Cash flows from operating activities
BETS R A (E18) %7 (Loss)/Profit before income tax (186,055) 65,158
B THIERFAE: Adjustments for:
R E KA Finance costs 16,017 13,557
E(EA B EHEE Share of results of joint ventures 111,777 (41,721)
LARSAD A 2Ll 2 R B Share-based compensation 2,390 470
VI R E RERETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 7,722 8,507
+ 3 {55 P AR A B Amortisation of land use rights 1,366 1,471
BB e 1 6 Amortisation of mining right 705 1,229
FERE Provision for inventories 5,955 1,864
B EUGRIE (BiEEE ) (Reversal of provision)/

R Provision for trade receivables (543) 401
AfEHECSREE Impairment loss on available-for-

B EE sale financial assets 457 4,834
HE—RHB ARz Wi Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (1,261)
HEME - HERZHE 2 Loss/(Gain) on disposal of

EE () property, plant and equipment 6 (28,513)

RIEN—EBZEATFIE  Gain on debt extinguishment

FEE 4 2 EBFERE arising from recognition of

amount due to a related

company (2,222) -
SH Y - B K A Write-off of property,

plant and equipment 163 224
BRI E SR Impairment loss on mining right 36,417 304,707
VI HE R EREREREIE  Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment 944 8,408
FEN —fE & &b E5KIE Impairment loss on amount

VEREY T due from a joint venture 150 =
MEETENFIE e Rk Wirite-off of prepayments,

b FE W RIA deposits and other receivables 468 -
IS ERB ER T E & Income arising from amortising

ZUA the financial guarantee liabilities (3,167) (2,884)
HEAHRHEZEREE Loss on disposal of available-for-

Z &8 sale financial assets - 549
BREMENFEZES Change in fair value of

investment property (11,112) (333,454)
MTESMIAEZ Fair value gain on derivative

DA = financial instruments (202) (181)

REIRE N R Unrealised foreign exchange loss 10,363 5,766
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2016 2015
HiaE F#T FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
EEESEPNZLE Operating (loss)/profit before
(EE18) & F working capital changes (8,401) 9,131
FE (#®m), (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (13,716) 35,351
B S REWFHIER D, (3h0)  Decrease/(Increase) in trade
receivables 21,333 (13,553)
TARTFRIE ~ iR ® R HAth Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,
FE%Z SRIER / (42hn) deposits and other receivables 21,719 (24,582)
NEERTABERZZ Decrease in financial assets at fair
% BEER D value through profit or loss 1,804 8,283
NEERPYE Additions to property under
development (26,810) (37,747)
FEM G & IR (Increase)/Decrease in amounts due
(3m) m from joint ventures (162) 14
H 5 K& H At I 5 I8 & (Decrease)/Increase in trade and
FEFTER CRd) /#in other payables and accruals (4,874) 32,649
}?’Ef\ﬁ EZREINCIE /@] (Decrease)/Increase in amounts
(), #E A due to related companies (117) 769
TESRIT A Changes in derivative financial
instruments 87 197
BE (FRH) E4xZ2HE Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (9,137) 10,512
BEAFIE Interest paid (15,927) (12,806)
B R B 1h 2 TS A PRC enterprise income tax paid (121) (428)
(B /BEBEBFER  Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/
refunded (848) 737
BEEFHHTHZHE 28 Net cash used in operating
activities (26,033) (1,985)
BRETBRENE Cash flows from investing
activities
NEME  WE R Additions to property, plant and
equipment 46 (6,897) (4,914)
REDBRIRENHEZ Additions to property under
BRPYIZE development classified as
investment property (13,939) (35,699)
HE—RWBEARZ Net cash inflows from disposal of
e mAFE a subsidiary 47 = 1,057
HEME  HE REHEZ Proceeds from disposal of
FriS 538 property, plant and equipment 2 29,154
WEHHE Y SBEES  Proceeds from disposal of
Fr{S 7118 available-for-sale financial assets = 10,071
BEAMHE Y SRAE Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets - (7,753)
BT —HEELEZEFIEM Increase in loans to a joint venture (134,440) (128,800)
REFBHIHZHZEHE Net cash used in investing
activities (155,274) (136,884)
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2016 2015
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
METBRERE Cash flow from financing
activities
(BEERRE),/ (Repayment to)/Advance from
2R AR EREA TR a controlling shareholder (21,000) 58,000
— IR R Advance from a related company 90,000 =
EERERERE Repayment of obligation under
finance leases (421) (437)
TEIRERETTRFTES 2R (E  Consideration arising from
exercise of share option - 1,379
FIBIRITER New bank loans 164,200 101,528
EERITER Repayment of bank loans (61,179) (44,058)
HEFBEEZHEFH Net cash generated from
financing activities 171,600 116,412
RERR&EERB[LER Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (9,707) (22,457)
EVZRERREER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 55,641 78,124
ISEREFHZHE  FH Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (302) (26)
ERZAERBEEEH Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 45,632 55,641
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RATRE AEGER
Equty attrioutable to the owners of the Company
ERER  EXRY  RAER
Bx  BRERE TUAREE  AMRRE HERE  EREE (i fE  REE & FauEs

Share Non- Captal ~ Convertile Exchange  Investment Non-
Share opion ~ distrbutable Other  conrioution ~ noteequty  fluctuation ~ revaluation Retained controling Total
aptl Teserve Teserve resene Teserve Teserve Tesene feserve profts Total interests equity
7Er i & 78T i & 78 7Er i & 7Er i

HS000 000 5000 HS000 HS 000 000 #5000 HS000 000 S0 HS000 000

RIF-MEtR-RZER Balance at 1 July 2014 442,555 2114 273,606 (5390 2093 116,034 80672 4326 97217 185212 (5,8%) 1,846,226
SRTARRE (Hi=12) Conversion of convertble note (note 32) 116034 - - - - (11603 - - - - - -
Recognition of share-based compensation (note 38)
- 40 - - - - - - - 4 - 40
Bxerdise of share options (note 36) 2,084 (705) - - - - - - - 1379 - 1319
EREAZLS Transactions with owners 118118 (239) - - - (1604 - - - 1849 - 1849
Fmih Profit forthe year - - - - - - - - M 1157 @) W
LT Other comprehensive income:
AHE SREEATEL Change in fai value of avalble-orsale
29 financil asets, net - - - - - - - (5480) - (5480) - (5480)
RAEHE SRERRER Reclasficaton from equty o proftorloss on
HERENIREER mpaitment on avalable-forsale finandial asets - - - - - - - 4834 - 4834 - 4834
REETHLE, 68 Release upon disposal of avalable-forale
RERER financl asets - - - - - - - 1,105 - 1,105 - 1,105
RENER BEQTR Exchange differences on trenslaton of foreign
AENEENEE operatons, asociates and ot ventures - - - - - - 8200 - - 8200 - 8200
ER2EHALE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 8200 459 141,571 150230 (34 1499%

RZB-BERAZHAZER Balance at 30 June 2015 560,673 1879 273,606 (5397)* 20935+ i 88872 4785¢ 1058848 2,004201 (6,130) 1998071
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EYGEEIN L
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
EniRy  REER
hE  BRERE FUNREE  EHEE  IERR B #E  RERA -

By

FEHEE  REAE

Share Non- Capital ~ Exchange  Investment Non-
Share option  distributable Other contribution  fluctuation ~ revaluation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

Fér fér  FEr FEr Fir Fir Fiér Fiér Fér Fér Fér
HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUDO  KKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSUDD  HKSUMO  HKSOOD  HKSUOD

RZF-LELA-AZHR  Balanceat 1July 2015 560,673 1879 273,606 (5397) 20935 88872 4785 1058848 2,004,201 (6,130) 1,998,071
—HsERRESLFE2  Deemed capital contrbution arising
BELAERERMEL from debt extinguishment from a

ZB{ELE (HE=10)  related company ultimately held by a
controlling shareholder (note 30(o) - - - - 7,632 - - - 1,632 - 7,632
BRI AR 2 M Recognition of share-based compensation
(KE=TN) (note 38) - 239 - - - - - - 2,390 - 239
HREAAZLS Transactions with owners - 239 - - 7632 - - - 10,022 - 1002
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - - - (175,666) (175,666 (6)  (17569)
Eh2ERE: Other comprehensive income:
ARHEZSHMEERTEZ  Change in fairvalue of avalable-for-sale
29 38 finandial assets, net - - - - - - 1,341 - 134 - 134
RAEHEZ SREERER  Redassfication from equity to profit or
BERENAREER Jogs on impaiment on avaiable-forsale
financial assets - - - - - - 457 - 457 - 457
BEBNER BEDAR  Exchange differences on transation of
RELEZENZE foreign operations, associates and
joint ventures - - - - - (110,258) - - (110,258) - (110,258)
ENLENELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (110,258) 1,79 (175,666) (284,126) (26) (284,152)
RZE-AERBETEZER Balance at 30 June 2016 560,673 4,269* 213,606 (5,397)* 28,567* (21,386)* 6,583 883,182* 1,730,097 (6,156) 1723941
i ZERBRS ﬂ?\é/ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬂ%qﬂ o These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
ZERET#E1,169,424,000% T (= HK$1,169,424,000 (2015: HK$1,443,528,000) in the consolidated

— A4 1 1,443,528,000/ 0 ) ° statement of financial position.
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— —RER 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

EBMREEBARIA ([AR
AR —RREEZTMALIL
NEBEREMEZ BRAR] K
NE MR ER IR EEE
EHEABTENEAMBEES
T—REETEFLE=H—8
M NJE o AN 7 B IR 1) £ 7 78 bk
BRPMARAR ([BAT])
Eme

ZAN/NCTDS SN NI N
KB EBRBATER:

~ B REREE
TRE R

—  pERE

- EmER

- R

EETRB ARAl 2 &KRE
f% A B ATamar Investments
Group Limited ([Tamar
Investments | ) " 2 A 7 & — A
REBREZHSEMKILZ A
=

mEMBREAET(ET])
2H AARFRZNEER -

IR ECAB EFE2268 ZiRE
BIISRE kB RS SMAE
(BB AE])FEMZ
BRI mEER (WAHEEE
FrE @A 2 BB SRS %R
BT EIRZEE)KEBA
FHED B B R B A TSRS 2
EXRE - R B B ISR E M TE
BEBBERBIERARES L
MR (TEMRAUBEZE
FA#ESIE

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

- Mining operation

= Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to
226 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
which concern the preparation of consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements also
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).
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£7% (37)

BheHEN  ERUEHL
B165 R TERBHAE
BheiEl
£38% (f537)

BAGHERN  BUMBRER
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BRUBRE EEEERE'
£ 145

BRUBRE  EPRiME
RRIE15HR

BEUBRE AE
R E163

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, that
have been issued, but are not yet effective in the
financial year of which the consolidated financial
statements were prepared, have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2012-2014 Cycle!

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’

HKAS 1

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative?
HKAS 7

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation’

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements'
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Sale or Contribution of Assets

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions
HKFRS 11 of Interests in Joint
Operations'

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

HKFRS 16 Leases*
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for early adoption

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income
from equity accounted interests in associates and
joint ventures will be split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and
presented in aggregate as a single line item within
those two groups.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide
information about changes in their financial liabilities
including changes from cash flows and non-cash
changes such as foreign exchange gains or losses.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted
if either the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11— Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of
the principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
when it acquires an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in that standard.
The principles of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the
formation of a joint operation if an existing business
as defined in that standard is contributed by at least
one of the parties.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the objective
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 (2014) retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R & FizE

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—RFA=THILFE

= RNEBMBREE

A &

(a)

B SRR E M R 2 78T
/ST BB R
Bl (4

BB S ERE 15
F—EL A A

I TE T B RS, — (B 2 —
WS FERAELR - sZAEZR 2
%2R A A B FE DA Bl
T8 BR 75 e ok S M AR T
K ERISFTER R (B 2 £ 58

RU S A E
EERERETFEE &
7 B 75 3k & XE R 551595
AR IR 1T Uk 5 R 45 3
(BIEABZETERF18
Rl BAESE
BB BEEEO] &
ERERE) -

FEEWBHHRELERF5
S ESRIA R B BRRE R

NV
Fay

o FF: BAEEP
ZEH

o FZH: FRGHH
ZBERARE

o FZH: BERSER

o FEY: BRHENE
ERENELE

o BHL: REEWEE
TR R
Yogs

BRMBRELERES
SR s RS T WA=
HZHEHES  %FHE
HEENBFEMERELE
AR A 277k - 2%
AT R E TR R a5 AA
ZECEE(LIEE-

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2. Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

o Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is
satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
guantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17. In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Save as the main changes described above, the
Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group's financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for
investment property and certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group'’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

3.5

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers
joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the Group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group classifies its interests in joint

arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

the structure of the joint arrangement;
the legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;
the contractual terms of the joint

arrangement agreement; and

any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Company's interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.11). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17% — 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.



Annual Report 2016 “F #f;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %5 B8RS Miz:

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—R"FRA=THIFE

- EEEF

(&)

3.7

3.8

el

BUR# =

W BMER&RE (F)

WEE BEZNHE
BRAERFHRER
= B Btes kAR (E
R -HERHEWE-
RBs & 2 B B 2 a3k
EiE RS EEZHE
PIISRIRBRRE SRR E
HEE YRHERER
= AHERR

FERTREMRANRERE
EEIRR - A B E R
BERAN - BEERT KA
EEBEMEAl T
BTesHREMTE-

BEMERERE 2 AR
e E A AR 2 e
EEBEHAER RS
EMRES (ABEE A
) Y78 o

R

R AR5 R
2 R FE T AR U0
W 2 DR
R BRA QRN
ES-Fons T8

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.1

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed
in note 3.17. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease/right
of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. A regular way purchase is a purchase
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the

rights to receive cash flows from the investments

expire or are transferred and substantially all of

the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed

to assess whether there is objective evidence of

impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment

loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of

financial assets which are managed
and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(@

(ir)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
Joss (continued)

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payment that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include

non-derivative financial assets that are

either designated to this category or do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising
from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised

in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below)

and foreign exchange gains and losses on

monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss. Interest calculated using the

effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity

securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and

derivatives that are linked to and must

be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses

at each reporting date subsequent to initial

recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

o a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

0] Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(0

(ir)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial assets has been
recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset's acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

3.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprises
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.23).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, convertible note, financial
guarantee liabilities, loan from a controlling
shareholder, obligation under financial leases, bank
loans and derivative financial instruments.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.23).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

() Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ir)

Convertible notes that contain liability and
equity components, and early redemption
options derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified
separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash for a fixed number of the Group’s
own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument. At the date of issue, the
fair value of a similar liability with similar
early redemption option is determined (the
“combined instrument”). The difference
between the fair value of the convertible
notes and the fair value of the combined
instrument representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes
into equity is included in convertible note
equity reserve. The initial carrying amount
of the liability component is determined
after deducting the fair value of the early
redemption option from the fair value of the
combined instrument.
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In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

BAK S (AT The equity component, representing the
ROBBRKASRE option to convert the liability component
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into ordinary shares of the Group, will
remain in the convertible note equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated
in the convertible note equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
note equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ir)

(iir)

(iv)

Convertible notes that contain liability and
equity components, and early redemption
options derivative (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability, equity and early redemption option
components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged
to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.

Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at
initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments.

Other financial liabilities other than derivative
financial instruments

They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

Lease (continued)

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Lease (continued)

Assets leased under operating leases as the lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Share capital

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap.622, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable for the sale of

goods, net of rebates and discounts. Provided that

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as

follows:

0]

(ii)

sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken at the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

sale of property is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have been transferred to the
purchasers and the Group retains neither
continuing involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over property under development.
The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of
possession of properties to the purchaser
when properties’ hand-over confirmation is
executed by the Group and the purchaser.
Deposits and disbursements received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under deposits received;

ul
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321 EEEA 3.21 Employee benefits
BRIKIEF Retirement benefits
EE 2 RREFFERRE Retirement benefits to employees are provided
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through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

~l
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All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).



Annual Report 2016 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—R"FRA=THILFE

= EEERBERBE

(&)

3.22

3.23

LARR 42 75 B 1 -2 $R BN
(%)

11 57 B fR AR SR - P B A
Bin RER 2 RN R
HAEERERRAX
MR FH 2 RS T ARD
BRBR ZFHMen
RERM2BERRA
X BRIEFRENTT & B 18 HE
RREE #HaNZBR
RFRESEEIZMN - M5
BIEHER  RIBRERX
SREHRE 2 BATA
B 2 REMG REE
HIMFER - FE IR B %
HEFATBRYRE
AT ASE ZR&
INEAR B AT R R E
HEBCRATAKER
RINFERIEEE  AEE
KB RhE -

TTIERB A AR - SERIINMRE
EARER 2 SBEREE
AR - 1 5 8 B TR -
EOREBIER R
R E T E BADARTT
15 - SERTR R AR (A
RZEBREBREARE &
Gk

BERA

WiE - BEREEEMNA
BIRBEEMEL ZEEX
AR B
HEEREENBRHIER
EREABHREAETE
K- AEREER/TEM
ERFRSEFREMAS
HHECBE -HibEE
B AR EE A RS HIERA S o

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Share-based compensation (continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in reserve will
be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Xe)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Borrowing costs (continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
|loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

the entity has a legally enforceable right to

set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(ii)

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income. Where the consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 3.18 if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26

3.27

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27 Segment reporting (continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and
trading of fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

- Mining operation

- Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that the share of
results of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method, certain finance costs,
income tax expense and corporate income and
expenses which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

3.28

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests in
associates and interests in joint ventures. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, certain
amount due to a related company, loan from
a controlling shareholder, financial guarantee
liabilities, provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.

~l
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(ii)

(iif)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

O
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the duration
and extent to which the fair value of specific investment
is less than its cost are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each customer. The
management of the Group reassesses the estimation at the
reporting date.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables (continued)

When the Group’s management determines the receivables
from customers are uncollectable, they are written off
against the provision made. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group, on whose account provision
for impairment has been made, were improved and no
impairment of their ability to make payments were noted,
reversal of provision for impairment may be required.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Valuation of mining right

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s mining right so as to
assess whether there are any indicators of impairment at
each reporting date. The fair value of the mining rights is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry which generally represent the best estimate of
the market value. Any changes in economic conditions
and mineral prices and the availability of comparable
transactions may materiality affect the estimation of the fair
value of mining right.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of financial guarantee contract

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique in order to measure the fair value of
the provision of financial guarantee contract to the wholly-
owned subsidiary of its joint venture during the year ended
30 June 2016. The fair value of the financial guarantee
contract is estimated by an independent professional valuer
based on the probability of default of the borrower.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technique utilised are:

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for

identical items (unadjusted);

. Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:

o Investment property

Available-for-sale financial assets

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

. Derivative financial instruments

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 16
and note 48.5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group's four business lines as operating
segments as further described in note 3.27.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@ FKoEb (@)  Business segment
Rit B HER
RERTEHRER ERE RRER &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and Property Mining
diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
AT Tir  fEr TR fEr TEn AT  Fér  FAn
HKSO00  HKSUO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSUO0  HKSO00  HKS 000
A Seqment revenue:
HEFNREE/  Sales tofrevenue from
BHEENAEE  extemal parties 543,152 715595 - - 905 13845 1460 552,575 730900
AizE Seqment results (14,086)  338% 465 327873 (47,769) (332,049 32 (59571) 32932
DG AZEEZEH Share-based compensation @30 @
AOERY Unallocated expenses (2,560)  (1,888)
BEERAEEE  Income arsing from amortising
HEEZHA the financil quarantee liabites 3067 288
RENA Finance costs (12.92)  (10021)
EFAZLEEE  Shareof resus of joint ventures Mm 4
R (Loss)Profi
(BE)/&H  before income tax (186,055 65,158
Rit BB HER
REREEHRER xRS RRER &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and Property Mining
diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
AT Tir  fAr TR fEr TEn AT Fér  TAn
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKS OO0 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS 000
AHEE Segment assets 372899 400803 1,054,141 1014224 748,055 852473 19618 2194383 2,287,118
RAERZZER  Interests in joint ventures 708636 74838
BeRAESE  Cashand cash equivlents 45632 55641
ELHEEE Deferred tax assefs 5762 5932
RABLTEE  Unallocated corporate assets m 42
BELE Total assets 2,954,644 3,097,489
B8R Segqment ablites 139799 127904 4958 6929 39597 40636 5199 26922 289781
B8R Bank loans 571548 463634
ER-BBEELT  Duetoarelated
AE company 90,000 -
BRRRRME Loan from a contoling
LB shareholder 131670 153,060
HBERAE Finandial quarantee liabiltes 565 701
B Provision for tax 29 4782
EEREBE  Defored tax bilties 141718 169862
AAEATAE  Unalocated corporate iabilties 4891 6118
BREE Totallabiites 1230703 1099418
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
XKD (E) (a)  Business segment (continued)
FitBig EER
BEREENRER nERE RREH % Ba
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and Property Mining
diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Fér TEr FEr  TEr  fEr  TEr fEr TEr fEr FEn
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSD00  HKS 000
EfopBEr:  Other segment information
nz BER Depreciation of property,

REAE plant and equipment (6123 (6709 - - (159 (1802 - - am) s
THEREES  Amortisation of land use rights (109 (109 - - () (1362 - - (1368 (1471)
FRERH Amortisaton of mining rght - - - -5 (1.29) - - (s (129
REMELTE  Changein fairvalue of

o L) investment property - - I 3B - - - - 33

JEN—EBEE  Gain on debt extinguishment

DEGEREE  arsing flom recogniton of

LEBEENE  amount dueto arelted

company - = - = 222 = - - 22 -
fPESBIEZ  Farvalue gain on dervative

ATENS financil instruments 0 181 - - - - - - 02 181
WATEFABEZ Fairvalue (los)igain on fivanci

SBEEZDTE  assetsat faivalue thiough

(BB)/%%&  poftorles - - - - - - (1804 638 (1804 6338
tefnE BER  Ganlloss) on disposal of

N/ property, plant and equipment

(E8) - B3 - - (6) - - - (6) 28513
HesnE HE  Wiiteoff of property,

ET:] plant and equipment 163 (9 - - - - - - (e
HE-FEIHBAT  Gainondsposal of a subsidiary

bA 6 -1 - - - - - - - 16
HERMEHEY  Loss on disposal of avaiable-for-

SHAECEE sl fiencel aset - - - - - - - (M - (W
TEHEZER  mpaimentlogs on avaiable-for

ZENESR  slfinancal asets - - - - - - ) ey @) e
REEHEEE  Impaiment logs on mining right - - - - (36417) (04707) - - (36417) (04707)
0E BERAE  mpaiment loss on property,

RESE plant and equipment - - - - () (84e - - () 849
FEkR Provsion for inventories (5955  (1.864) - = = = - - (5955 (1864
EHRUGERE  Reversal of provision/Provison)

&0/ (%)  fortiade receivables 53 (0) - = = - = - ([0
WEBHZE S Wite-off of prepayments,

REMERETE  deposts and other recevables (468) - - - - - - - () -
FERA Interestincome - - - - - - 30 3 30 By
flERx Interest expenses - - - - (30%) 353 - - (3093 353
e Additions to non-curent

PPEE Segments assets 2,364 5330 13939 35699 4533 828 - - 086 41857
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B SERER @ 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEEHR (b)  Geographic information
AEEXRBINATR Z The Group’'s segment revenue from external

DR EEEFRBE
E (R TAREENER
BERIN D RATH

customers and its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas.

i o
REMRERZK S
Revenue from
external customers
2016 2015
F#T FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE (EBAEH) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 43,873 111,153
1M North America 224,394 251,118
BN X AR R Europe and Middle East 258,108 331,749
H th 3 [= Other locations 26,200 36,880
&5 Total 552,575 730,900
EREEE
Non-current assets
2016 2015
F#ET FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (E@BAEH) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 478,994 481,264
S United Kingdom 4,107 5,175
CellEiy N7 Mainland China 1,483,915 1,602,443
H {th b [ Other locations 2 10
BET Total 1,967,018 2,088,892

~l
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographic information (continued)

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
physical location of the assets.

The executive directors determine the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
Group's principal office.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which

amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
set out below:

2016 2015

FET FETT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

KR Customer A* 92,496 145,973
2R * Customer B* 62,683 75,261
BEFER* Customer C* 60,379 TE A NA
* RE=%(ZF—1 * The revenue from three major customers (2015:

T MB)EBRP
ZMEs R EERa R
CORE TN
REEKEEHRE
BLAE-

two major customers) was all derived by the
segment engaging in design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds.
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s s 6. REVENUE
Watg &R RERE STE Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
BEEHERZBEZFE FEK after allowances for returns and trade discounts, interest
AREE 2 B A - income and dividend income from investments.
REBWRZHMAT : An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
2016 2015
FH#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
3HE B o Sale of goods 543,152 715,595
HE R Sale of gold ores 9,056 13,845
2 HA Interest income 30 32
& 2 KRB WA Dividend income from investments 337 1,428
552,575 730,900
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7. FINANCE COSTS

2016 2015
FiET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FERX: Interest charges on:
RITER Bank loans 12,210 10,843
AR R IR 2 Interest expenses on loan from
ERZFERZ a controlling shareholder 2,080 1,963
FEN —EREE R A Interest expenses on amount due to
HIEZ A B X a related company 1,637 =
BERERAEZ Finance charges on obligation under
BEEH finance leases 62 65
FE T REE A RISKIBFT Imputed interest expenses arising from
EEZEENERX: amounts due to related companies 5,403 5,252
AR R 2 FEER I B Imputed interest expenses on
A (sE=+=) convertible note (note 32) = 71
BEBEKA Total borrowing costs 21,392 18,194
B TNPIE B &R Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
ZIRITEHF A
—BEWE (HE+X) — investment property (note 16) (1,839) (2,587)
—BRBYE — property under development
(PFE=1T=) (note 22) (3.536) (2,050)
16,017 13,557
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1

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000
NEBERFTSRIAT (EH8),  The Group's (lossyprofit before
wAEMER S (FEA) income tax is arrived at after
ATRIE B #E50: charging/(crediting):
EEHFERA Cost of inventories sold 440,079 598,073
M BB REETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Bt=E+m) equipment (note 14) 7,722 8,507
A G Auditor’s remuneration 1,153 1,180
(b R R 8 Amortisation of land use rights
(FsE+H) (note 15) 1,366 1,471
PRuEfE o (MY et 1) Amortisation of mining right (note 17) 705 1,229
T REFEEEEZ Minimum lease payments under
SIEAE K operating leases on land and
buildings 4,655 4,762
FEEE Provision for inventories* 5,955 1,864
AT ERTABRZERMEE Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets
ZAFERE () at fair value through profit or loss 1,804 (6,338)
TESmTEZ AFEWE  Fair value gain on derivative financial
—RHEEEHN instruments
— forward currency contracts (202) (181)
VI B e Net foreign exchange loss 11,527 5,662
HEME  HE REZHEZ Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
B8, (Uzs) plant and equipment 6 (28,513)
HE—RRB ARz Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(B EEm ++) (note 47) - (1,261)
EREN —FHEEARFIE  Gain on debt extinguishment arising
FRES 2 BB E W= from recognition of amount
due to a related company (2,222) -
I8 %8 B Government grants * (650) (598)
L 5 e B (BB E ), (Reversal of provision)/Provision for
B trade receivables (543) 401
MEHTEN IR me & Write-off of prepayments,
A e GRIR deposits and other receivables 468 -
B —EEEEEREL Impairment loss on amount due
BEEE from a joint venture 150 -
WEE - BB k& Write-off of property, plant and
equipment 163 224
e FRZIFERB T ARE @ Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost

BRkEMEEKRERZ
[HERA] A

B EZRBETMImE
TREERER(ZF—h
F TP E L R A e 4
B) R Z 5038 - e Th R AN
SE R B RA R EZEE
TR %IAE) - A B8 B I &
REITIRME R AEIR -

of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Government grants are mainly received from ;T PIm13E/T
B ERER (2015 I & LELERER) for one
of the Group's subsidiaries in respect of business activities
carried on in this area. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies related to these grants.
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N IEHEKSE 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT

BENESHEBEARFTFERSA Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
P A 2 (BT FE AR B s A 3R 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
#16.5% (ZZE—FHF:16.5%) arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
ST o H th 3 [B B SR F 2 B¢ assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
TRIR R & B & TG PR 2 RlA rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
BERRERAZHESE  WR operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
BzEal AR RITER 7 practices in respect thereof.

BB

2016 2015
Fi# T FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B EA%R 18 Current tax
B Hong Kong 79 102
H PRC 3 604
LA FE B Over-provision in prior years (1,574) (337)
(1,492) 369
EIERIE (E=1+5) Deferred tax (note 35)
KEE Current year (8,871) (76,548)

TSRk R 4a%E Total income tax credit (10,363) (76,179)
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N BEHERE @ 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)
FriSTi e BE A =5t E 2 Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting
B (BR), S5 H 2 $8k - (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:
2016 2015
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETISBIAT (BE) & F (Loss)/Profit before income tax (186,055) 65,158

HAERZE16.5% (ZZ—FH 4 : Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax,
16.5% ) 5T & Z BR P15 Fi Al calculated at the statutory rate of

(&18),/s I EE 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (30,699) 10,751
REAM AR L E 2 Effect of different tax rates of
MEBRAR TR E & subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (5,028) (27,673)
Efh& **ﬁz\%%ﬁz Tax effect of share of results of
M5z & joint ventures 18,443 (6,884)
PAIMBHRZ 2 RGFE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,679 4,505
AR A 2 TS 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,466) (61,728)
RNEZBAUEFEFHRIE Tax effect of prior years' tax losses
Bz HETE utilised this year (42) (1,679)
FERHIBEBEZREFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 8,283 6,943
RERERE =B MIEFE Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised (959) (77)
DAfE F S B RE B Over-provision in prior years (1,574) (337)
FARMGHER Income tax credit for the year (10,363) (76,179)
+- B2 10. DIVIDENDS
EETEBMEE_ZT—"FEX The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends
A=+HLEFEIRMEMEE in respect of the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).
—hHFE)e
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ARBHE ANBESRERNLE
& (ER) /B IR T 5 8E

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

FTE: following data:
2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RAEEB ARG (Loss)/Profit attributable to the
(E18) &7 owners of the Company (175,666) 141,571
AR R 2 5 Imputed interest expenses on
A BRI convertible note = 71
RETATHR AR 2 JE SR (Loss)/Profit attributable to the
MEFRX AT Z AAF] owners of the Company before
B AES (BB) & F imputed interest expenses on
convertible note (175,666) 141,642
& H
Number of shares
2016 2015
AR E TR E AR Weighted average number of ordinary
(E8]) &BFz shares for the purpose of basic
LB AR N 5 X (loss)/earnings per share 6,831,182,580  6,347,942,351
TORIEY &2 B #E Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
Tk w2 shares in respect of
— AR RR =g (T EEG) ) — convertible note (note (ii)) = 478,010,094
— B AR A (B (i) B (i) ) — share option (notes (i) and (ii)) = 9,033,987
AR E TR Weighted average number of ordinary
(E8]) &Fz shares for the purpose of diluted
LB AR N 5 X (loss)/earnings per share 6,831,182,580  6,834,986,432

H
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+— 8B (B1]) &BH

(&)

@

(ii)

REBEEZZT—R"FA=F
HIEFE SRESEES
BIHERA RN BIHER AEMNL
F RE518175,666,00078 7T K&
ERNFRALHEDRITLR
f% An4eE S ¥5 £46,831,182,580
B (Bl EAREIETE
BT 2 X 3 A% hn 4 S 35 2k
6,831,182,5800% ) 5t & o A
HE-_ZT—X"F~A=1H
IEFE R ERERR#
BRE WA EEREEE
BRI A R R PR AR AT
e

REBEE-_ZT—AF~A=1
HIEFE SRESRANS
BHERARNRARER AE
1l € N 34 F141,571,0007%8
TC (#S A% DA R B T 3R AR 32
B2 ESMERMS I (a0
i ) A 58 B DA Bk A £
ERBETFEIER TR
(BN141,642,000/8 7T) ) &
ERNFRALCHEDRITLR
J& An4eE - 5 £46,834,986,432
BRONERERBFGHE
W AT A 2 AR N i
#16,347,942,3511% » W 5L18
EfTE R ER A&
£5478,010,0948% & & I &
RIETHBERENERA
9,033,987k LMk« L E{E
AR FHE -

11.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Notes:

(ii)

For the year ended 30 June 2016, diluted loss per share
amounts is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$175,666,000 on the
adjusted weighted average of 6,831,182,580 ordinary
shares outstanding during the year, being the weighted
average of number of ordinary shares of 6,831,182,580
used in basic loss per share calculation. For the year ended
30 June 2016, the computation of diluted loss per share
did not assume the exercise of the share options as they
were anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, diluted earnings
per share amounts was based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$141,571,000 and adjusted to reflect the imputed
interest expenses on the convertible note, where
applicable, after adjustments to reflect the effect of
deemed exercise or conversion of convertible note, which
was HK$141,642,000 and on the adjusted weighted
average of 6,834,986,432 ordinary shares outstanding
during the year, being the weighted average of number of
ordinary shares of 6,347,942,351 used in basic earnings
per share calculation adjusted for the effect of deemed
exercise of convertible note into 478,010,094 ordinary
shares and share options into 9,033,987 ordinary shares.

ul
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HE_Z-—REFA=THILFE

TSR (BFE
EME-METZ)

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)

2016 2015
F#ETT FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TIE #e ML EWHZE  Wages, salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind 90,157 93,592

REHFGRRETEI K Contributions on defined contribution
retirement plans 8,831 9,069
VAR AD A B0 2 = B Share-based compensation 2,390 470
101,378 103,131

= EEHMRANES

(a)

wALTZME

ExHE

BIEES R EHEH (5
622F ) F3831F & A T
(BEEEMNRER) R
Bl (5£622GE ) B2 &=

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is as

S 1 NE follows:
2016 2015
F T FETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EEwe Directors’ fees 200 300
e EREYHZ  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 12,036 11,949
TE4T Bonus 726 622
BRIREFIFTEI L3R Contributions to retirement
benefit schemes 439 435
ARG 1D B 2 58 Share-based payment 2,390 470
i & 28 58 Total emoluments 15,791 13,776
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HE_Z—R"FRA=THILFE

+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HALTZENE @) EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

() ES=ME (&) (@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
FRAENKENSESZ The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
BT : directors during the year were as follows:

BE-S-~E~RA=THLEE

Year ended 30 June 2016
4 EMR RINER AR 7
g EH& izl FEfE ERZEF @t
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’  and benefits benefit  Share-based
fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total

Téz Féx Tz Téx Féx Tz
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000

(F=EG)) (P2 ()

(note (i) (note (ii)
nirEs: Executive directors:
B2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 190 174 - 3,964
[1f]\¥:3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 190 103 - 2,573
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,032 86 46 597 1,761
- Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 1,776 148 80 597 2,601
BARE Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1344 12 18 598 2,072
i Yam Tat Wing - 2,004 - 18 598 2,620
FamES: Non-executive director:
J Bz Gi) Fang Gang (note (ii) - - - - - =
BikpmEs: Independent non-executive

directors:

RBA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
R Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
i e Sze lrons 50 - - - - 50
KB Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - - 50
st Total 200 12,036 726 439 2,390 15,791
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HE_Z-—RFA=THILFE

=]

+= - FEEHFMRAMES
wATZIME =)

(@) EBM= (&)

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BE-T-RE/A=THIEE

Year ended 30 June 2015
e 2R RG] DA A
EShs ENFIR e SHEER ERZEX it
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors'  and benefits benefit  Share-based
fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FET FAT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(BizE() (BzE()
(note (7)) (note (i)
nrEs: Executive directors:
REE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 100 174 - 3,874
=3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,250 185 101 - 2,536
REL Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1017 84 46 - 1,147
Bfgu Chan Wai Lap, Victor = 1,752 144 78 - 1,974
BER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1326 109 18 470 1923
EER Yam Tat Wing - 2,004 - 18 - 2,022
FHTES: Non-executive director:
T (B & Gi)) Fang Gang (note (ii)) 100 = - = = 100
BUkHiTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
RER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
B Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
HERIE Sze lrons 50 = - - = 50
K8 Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = - - - 50
&3t Total 300 11,949 622 435 470 13776
HteE - Notes:
0) TR ER 2 AAK (i) The bonus is determined by the individual
IMEETE ° performance of the directors.
(ii) ZERIRIERIBAR (ii) These amounts represent the estimated value of
AEREEIR T share options granted to the directors under the
TR BB Company's share option scheme. The value of
BE-2EBEREZE these share options is measured according to the
1B 1R 4% B 75 5 25 B accounting policies for share-based payments as
FE3.22F7 8 2 AR D set out in note 3.22 to the financial statements.
RERINH2E5 Further details of the options granted are set out in
BORETE - BRI note 38 to the financial statements.
Rt 2 — 15
B B 75 R 5 B A
=+Ne
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HE_Z—R"FRA=THILFE

+= - EEFMRAMNES
FATZENE 2

(@) E=M=(E)
Mzt (&)

(iii) 7l 2 B EARR A
FHITEE B
—RFNA=+HA
FEAERK o

REBZE=ZZT—X<FXA
_+E|Jt¢r;u h—%
AZEEFRICEREEE
E_E—HFEXNA=T
A I F [E & %0100,0007%
TZME (—E—RE:
AREEREEHET
—ZFRZZE—NFX
A=+HLEFEZME -
7 Bl A 2100,000% 7T &
100,000/ L) °

BRETREE SN FAME
EEMENFEBHEEMA
HriMz Btz B o FARE
BEEEHREMME -

FRN ARELERES
S AHEMBE E R IIAZL
PINAZER BIR 2 52/ sk
BB RN

(b) HEuUBHSHFAL

RBE-Z—RFE-F
—HFERNA=THILF
B -AEERUESHA
ITEMRARAESE K
EZMEFER LXH

E’éo

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) Fang Gang resigned as non-executive director of
the Company effective from 25 September 2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, one of the ex-
directors, Mr. Fang Gang, waived his emoluments
for the year ended 30 June 2015 which amounted
to HK$100,000 (2015: Mr. Fang Gang waived his
emoluments for the years ended 30 June 2013
and 2014 which amounted to HK$100,000 and
HK$100,000 respectively).

Saved as disclosed, there was no other arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year. No directors
waived any emoluments during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015 were
all directors of the Company and details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

o)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—REFA=THILFE

(@)

+0 - ¥R - BB RERE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BFREE ) fRfft RE-
HELH NERE REEYE  BRERME RBRAE #EIR %
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
FAT FET TAT FET FET TAT FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
RZF-MELA-H  At1luly2014
KA Cost 6,160 99,758 46,490 61,629 59,423 8830 282,290
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (3,020) (57,323) 87) (54,564) (51,356) - (166,350)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,140 42,435 46,403 7,065 8,067 8,830 115,940
BZ-3-1% Year ended 30 June 2015
AASTREER
ENEEFE Opening net carmying amount 3,140 42435 46,403 7,065 8,067 8,830 115,940
HE Additions - 1,860 - 29 3475 794 6,158
HE /M Disposals/Written off (634) (223) - - ® - (865)
ik Depreciation (83) (4.219) (54) (922) (3224) - (8,507)
HESE Impairment loss - (2,687) (3.092) (260) 075) (2,094) (8.408)
A% Exchange realignment - (309) 12 30 (37) 4 63)
ERREFE Closing net carrying amount 2418 36,857 43,469 5,942 7,998 151 104,255
RZF-HEXA=TH  At30June2015
A Cost 5052 100,006 46,708 61,206 61,780 9,665 284417
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,634) (63,149) (3239 (55,264) (53,782) (2,094) (180,162)
REFE Net carrying amount 2418 36,857 43,469 5942 7,998 151 104,255
BE_S-1% Year ended 30 June 2016
~ASTRLER
ENEETE Opening net carrying amount 2418 36,857 43469 5,942 7,998 7571 104,255
HE Additions - 609 2,664 521 1,293 1,810 6,897
e /i Disposalsiten off - (17) - ) (45) - (17)
e Depreciation 83) (3,522) (33) (468) (3616) - (7.722)
BEER Impairment loss - (293) (369) (26) 6) (250) (944)
EHAZ Exchange realignment - (3133 (3,354) (394) 419) (584) (7,884)
ERREFE Closing net carrying amount 2335 30,401 42317 5,566 5,05 8,547 94,431
RZF-RERAZTH  At30June 2016
KA Cost 5,052 93,379 45,769 58,477 60,702 10,730 274,109
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment 217 (62,978) (339) (52,911) (55,497) 2,183 (179,678)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,335 30,401 42,377 5,566 5,205 8,547 94,431
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HE_Z—R"FRA=THILFE

+0 - % - BB R 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(&)

REBE T BE REEHE
REREFAREZEB 2 ReES
B AEERSELESENER
HEATRUE FT & © #7944,0007% TT

— T — A 4 : 8,408,000/ 7T )
ZBEEE D B EMR S EY)
¥ BERZEEDE (ME
++) o

RZE—R"FANA=FTH &
& B @ IR E F EH4914,136,000
B (ZZF — A% : 16,357,000
BIL)ZETHELHMREFE
HER EARNEEER 2 —
MIBITEERE 2 ER (M
ZF+N\)e

RZZE—RFARA=FTH ' AE
ZEEBSERERERERE
A 2 & EA#1,055000% T

—Z — A% :1,530,000/% 7T )
et -

(continued)

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group were
combined with the mining right under the CGU of the
mining operation for impairment assessment at that CGU
level. Impairment loss of approximately HK$944,000 (2015:
HK$8,408,000) was allocated to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment (note
17).

At 30 June 2016, the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$14,136,000 (2015: HK$16,357,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28).

At 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of motor
vehicles includes an amount of HK$1,055,000 (2015:
HK$1,530,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

« T iiE B 15. LAND USE RIGHTS

REER T H(FERE 2R ATE The Group's interests in land use rights represented prepaid
HEEHEERE LR SEEE operating lease payments and the movements in their net

oM carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2016 2015
F#T TET
HKS$000 HK$'000
FYIRREF Opening net carrying amount 38,784 40,083
FAHEHER Amortisation charge for the year (1,366) (1,471)
ME 5, e B Exchange realignment (2,731) 172
FRAREFEE Closing net carrying amount 34,687 38,784
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—
N

BE_Z-—R"EAA=THILFE

+3H - LERE @ 15. LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)
RZE—RFESNA=1H & At 30 June 2016, the Group's certain land use rights with
B AR E 48 881,341,000 7T (= aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,341,000 (2015:
T—AhF:1,377,0008 L) 25 HK$1,377,000) were pledged to secure general banking
T RESEETE  EAR facilities granted to the Group (note 28).
SEER . —RRITIEEREZ
ER(HE=1+/) -

+75 IEWE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AEBRGCERERE RN
e EERNEEBE 2B YEER
SRR BERRIEE M E

?Zﬁﬁ%¥'ﬁﬁ%”¥@
RAGTEWIRIEEYHEFER
IHEo

REFEEMBHRRAREINZEEE
MEHHANT -

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

2016 2015
F#ET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FURE SR Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 446,040 581,000
NE Additions 13,939 35,699
BEAREZRITER Bank loan interest capitalised
B (KisEt) (note 7) 1,839 2,587
NEERAEME N FERE Net gain from fair value adjustments 11,112 333,454
EEERPYE Transfer to property under
(fEFE=1+=) development (note 22) = (506,700)
FAREESRE Carrying amount at end of the year 472,930 446,040
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HE_Z—R"FRA=THILFE

+5 - ’REWE #) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

REBEE-_ZTE—AFA=+H
JJ:EEW’%%%)E—IE?%‘J'
HE—RIRATREIERKREY
ERgzOEz 8D -HRE
$E%HXEETT@JT&%¢JB§Z%E§
DYE - WHERBEZHEET
R MUt Ay 2 ERIREWE
EESAE AR - —HF
+— A+ NBEHSEERFE
NZBERPYE - R _T—HF
NA=TH AKBEKIGE
HE FMELZ ZEEE - NE
MOBEBRRPYEER %3
DRZIREMFERBILTTRISA
TNEEITRIERAR AR ([F
BRTDRBARBERETER
FEREETHE FHZATER
506,700,000/ 7T

R_ZT—RAF A=1+H &E
YEE R AL TIRE R 3 B K
A 3 8% (4 {8 £446,040,00075
TCo FISREFEMBRBEIER 21&
FTBR A (BIRRER A FE
B REKA  MHEKA) I
FFREEEEREERIERE
BZRAMEE -R=2T—MHF
+— A=t NBEZEHERYE
ETHSREGEE—ZT—R1F
NA=ZTHRAEAMEAZEHATFE
B Yz 5 ¥ 5 51332,306,000/%
70 %.1,148,000% 7L B A E =
AFEARNA=THIEEEZ

T—
A2

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the directors initiated
a plan to sell a portion of the property which was originally
being developed for future use as investment property. This
portion of the investment property under construction was
reclassified to property under development in inventory
on 26 November 2014 as a result of the change in use
which was evidenced by substantive actions taken by the
Directors to market the portion of the property for sale and
also to commence the necessary registration procedures
for sale. The Group had since successfully agreed the
sale of a number of floors of the said property as at 30
June 2015. The portion of the investment property was
revalued at a fair value of HK$506,700,000 at the date of
reclassification to property under development by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH"), an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, on a re-development basis adopting the
residual method.

Investment property was valued at 30 June 2015 by LCH
at HK$446,040,000 on re-development basis by adopting
the residual method. The residual method was determined
by deducting the estimated total cost of the development
including costs of construction, professional fee, finance
cost, associated costs and an allowance for developer's
risk and profit from the gross development value. Net fair
value gain on revaluation upon transfer of certain portion
to property under development on 26 November 2014 and
subsequently up to 30 June 2015 of HK$332,306,000 and
HK$1,148,000 respectively arising therefrom were credited
to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2015.
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+5 - REWE #) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

FAZGERMARFEE NS
mHE RRRESR R R
FRFHEHNAKE 2 RE KR
AR

RZE—AFENA=1+8 Fl%
THRAMSG AR EMERETT
2 (18 &472,930,000/ T o
A eERRBASBERYEZK
R HESRERER  MABRET
HEIE BB MR 2 BIEES
EEME e

AEBBREME 2 A FEBF3
BREMNFETE - FHEF

There was a change to the valuation technique during the
year from residual method to market approach because the
directors considered that the change would give a fairer
presentation of the results and the financial position of the
Group.

Investment property was valued at 30 June 2016 by LCH
at HK$472,930,000 by adopting the market approach. The
market approach considers the sales, listing or offerings
of similar or substitute properties and related market
data establishes a value estimate by processes involving
comparison.

The fair value of the Group's investment property is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

N

RAFEERERAT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:
2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERR (F3E Opening balance (level 3

KEMENTE) recurring fair value) 446,040 581,000
NE Additions 13,939 35,699
B Z SRITERA A Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7)

(FEE+) 1,839 2,587
NEERAEME R FERE Net gain from fair value adjustments 11,112 333,454
EEERPYE Transfer to property under

(fsEFE=+=) development (note 22) = (506,700)
FERHEH (F3E Closing balance (level 3

BN TE) recurring fair value) 472,930 446,040
MERFIFEERTA Change in unrealised gains or losses

Bm s FARER for the year included in profit or loss

Wiz sk 18 for assets held at the end of the year 11,112 333,454

AF{EFHBIA LR AN B
72 A (RAKRARL
M) AR

The fair value measurement is based on the above
investment property’s highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.
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T35 REVER #) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
TREEEANAEEREYE The following table gives information about how the fair
REEZER - value of the investment property is determined.

EXREBE BEAREEZHNEL
Gl AR EXEEBEBAE BAEZ&ER MFEZRE
Relationship of
Significant Range of significant significant unobservable
Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
2016 2015 2016 2015
RENZ ik RIENA MEEE  MPELE - +-2% TER  MERERAELENEZ
NIREE ~25% HERn ATEAS.
Investment property Market Residual Quality of properties such as N/A  The higher the quality of
approach method location, size and level of properties with reference
the properties to comparables is, the higher
the fair value is.
GEARER ERAEERY  TEB 24008 STHRERDS:
BHBIRA WAt RAE K F  ATEAEC
FXNMERE FARE 72,0007 7T
ZEMERNRE
Price per square foot, using direct N/A HK$24,000  The higher the price

RZE—XRNEXNA=F+H &
& B BR M £ %8472,930,0007% JT
— T — 7 F: 446,040,000/
T ZIEBEMEEWER  ER
REBERZRITEE ZER
(MFsE=+ )

comparables and taking into
account of the location and
other individual factors such
as size of property, level of
property, site view etc.

BRRT 2 RERER
HEENA

Estimated construction and
other professional costs to
completion

iR REABREMS 25
E=

Estimated profit margin
required to hold and
develop the investment

to

HK$72,000

FER  STHR

3,100 7T

N/A HK$3,100

per

square foot

TER 17%
N/A

per square foot is,
the higher the fair value is.

EEREREMERKADS
AFERE.

The higher the estimated
construction and other
professional cost are,
the lower the fair value is.

iR RABREMS 2 At
MExSE ATERE.

The higher estimated profit
margin required to hold and
develop the investment is,
the lower the fair value is.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group's investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$472,930,000 (2015:
HK$446,040,000) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing
granted to the Group (note 28).
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(@)

++t - HiE#E 17. MINING RIGHT

2016 2015
FET FHETT

HKS$'000 HK$'000
F YRR E S Opening net carrying amount 751,427 1,052,432
FAHEHEER Amortisation charge for the year (705) (1,229)
FAREREE Provision of impairment for the year (36,417) (304,707)
bE 5 AR Exchange realignment (57,971) 4,931
FRIRMEFRE Closing net carrying amount 656,334 751,427
ARE AR Gross carrying amount 977,711 1,059,424
Rt Accumulated amortisation (3,761) (3,290)
REDREREE Accumulated provision for impairment (317,616) (304,707)
AREDFER Net carrying amount 656,334 751,427

REES 2 RS EL S 2 AT
Bl & FAR B X FER H B Z
AEFN (EBEAFENE)E
ﬁ_‘i o

ReELBM 2 HERFERR
RIBBAEEER R EERE
R BRI A AT g 2 B
VA ERZFEERAR (=
T-aF EBERFEAERA
Al #ETT

R-ZZB—REXNA=+H R
BB 2 N FER & RARE
FREHMEER S REMIHE
E-ERSELBEUAFER
ERZEERBRIABLFEEMG
BEZ SEMGFRKE-

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the mining
operation has been determined based on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, a level 3 fair value
measurement.

The valuation of the CGU is carried out by Dragon
Appraisals Co. Ltd (2015: Roma Appraisals Limited), an
independent valuer who holds recognised and relevant
professional qualifications and has recent experience in the
location and category of the mining right being valued.

The fair value less costs to sell of the CGU as at 30 June
2016 was measured using recent sale and purchase
transactions under the market-based approach. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the CGU were based on the independent professional
valuer’s best estimate.
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++t - HIEE =) 17. MINING RIGHT (continued)

ZITEZ BEREEBERAER
T

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

2016 2015

AR RS ERZ T EEHE

The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources

40% £100%
40% to 100%

50%%275%
50% to 75%

RFEBRERRERR §7228.29 % T §75923.87487C
EBRI0ERT E=ER91.9987T

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple HK$28.29 HK$23.87
per gram to per gram to

HK$70 HK$91.99

per gram per gram

BEfE2ERZ T RESRER
= A FERE - KHAEERK
BREHAS AFEAS-

AT PO SR BT o 7
W BN R TR
T G T - DA
i

KREB@ G EFRARE
EBRSELEENM 2 AT RES
%A {51 A&553,948,000/8 7T ( —
Z — F 4 :633,610,000/ 7T) -

MREE—E—~FA=1+H
IEFEEHERBEEBK RS
EA BN 2R EEE37,361,000
Bt (ZZF—A% 313,115,000
VST ) © VB 1B B 18 B E MU ER 1
ARV -BER&HEERR
& %87 736,417,000 7T (=
Z — 7 4 : 304,707,000/ 7T )
944,000 L (=& — A 4F:

8,408,000/ 7T ) < B EET A
REEEBED BT 2 HBEETS

BEBBEZRNETTESER
THEFEE 2 &8 -

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources is, the lower the fair value is. The higher the
adjusted consideration of resources multiple is, the higher
the fair value is.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the
year. The independent professional valuer exercises their
professional judgement to estimate the uncertainty of
resources to improve the valuation technique.

With reference to the assessment, the directors are of the
view that the recoverable amount of the CGU of mining
business is estimated to be HK$553,948,000 (2015:
HK$633,610,000) and therefore, an impairment loss of
HK$37,361,000 (2015: HK$313,115,000) in respect of
the CGU of the mining business was identified for the
year ended 30 June 2016. The impairment loss is allocated
to write down the carrying amount of mining right and
property, plant and equipment by HK$36,417,000 (2015:
HK$304,707,000) and HK$944,000 (2015: HK$8,408,000)
respectively. The impairment loss is included under
mining operation of the Group's operating segment. The
impairment loss is primarily due to the change of the range
of uncertainty of the estimated gold resources.

~l
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0]

T\ REVE AR Z R 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2016 2015

F#ET FET

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FE TR - RAAR Unlisted shares, at cost = =

B EEFE Share of net assets 6,034 6,034

BB Provision for impairment (6,034) (6,034)

2016 2015

F#ET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

JE Y B 8 X B FRIR Due from associates 1,259 1,259

B T A Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259)

RBEZZ-—R"FR-ZT—hF There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of

NA=THIEEE - B e amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
ERAIRAZREBEHNES June 2016 and 2015.

@J o
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T\ REFERRZH#E R 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(&)
FEWRIEREEHR 28 RIRE The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
SRIERK o on demand.
B HEERA ZASEEE The summarised financial information of the Group's
Bt N a2 I E R - principal associate extracted from its management accounts

are as follows:

2016 2015
Fi#T FET
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
n7A<B=+H As at 30 June

EREBEE Non-current assets 264 296
MENEE Current assets 5,072 7,618
EREEE Non-current liabilities = -
mEAE Current liabilities (338) (734)

BEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue 2,790 3,319
FREE Loss for the year (1,627) (1,699)
Hibh 2wk Other comprehensive income (554) 43
2HE TR ARRE Total comprehensive income (2,181) (1,656)
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(@)

+/\ - REFE AT Z R 18.

(&)

—F-—XFAAS+H XE
BEARZHEOT:

&R EREAMEARE
Particulars of paid-up
Name registered capital

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2016 are

as follows:
AL/ R REBER
REBEHE FIEREZAENL  IZXH
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and ownership interest

operations attributable to the Group Principal activities

FEENMESHEARAR  BHRBRAAKH,093247
General Jewellery (Shanghai)  Paid up capital of
Company Limited* RMB9,093,244

* FEMBEBL R AME
BHARABRLERSELZ
HAppk 8 R BZE

EERR LA RREE QR
IBREFARMBBERRIRE
SAERAREREBERREE
FREZBRBLD EFZRR R
HEMBENR 2 FHBESEHR
BN IR

Th -REEhRFZE

PEARE 36 REBHBER T
Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing

and wholesaling

* Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.

The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

T 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2016 2015

F T FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B & EFE Share of net assets 28,153 203,965
RIEH —HEELELE Deemed capital contribution to

a joint venture® 15,843 14,221

BT —HEEtEZER Loans to a joint venture 664,640 530,200

708,636 748,386
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Th REEEFZER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(& (continued)
BT HEELEZERAER The loans to a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free
HEERBETEEFHA-EF and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of
RBZEERBERRE A HE the directors, these loans are not repayable within twelve
T EAAEE- months from the reporting date.
# BRERDRIEE —HaE @ The balance represented the deemed capital contribution
TEZEZEMNBARZH to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture,
B HERARRGBRZE R A representing the fair value of the financial guarantee
HEITZRITEERE (T contracts provided by the Company to a bank for the
=+ =) MARITIRE I B E banking facility entered by that company (note 33).
RELDZ RNTFE
2016 2015
F#ET FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
e & &> RIE Due from joint ventures 317 155
VERIERE L Provision for impairment (150) =
167 155
FEW —FHl & &b IR 2 R A The movement in the provision for impairment of amount
HEBWOT due from a joint venture is as follows:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAHEER Balance at beginning of the year = =
EERBIEBE Impairment losses recognised 150 =
FREERR Balance at end of the year 150 =

FEW IR R IR - 2 B AR

ERBER o on demand.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
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Th REEERZIER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
RZEBE—RFERNA=TH 2 Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2016
BELEZFHBAT are as follows:
"ML/ R REEEL
&8 BETRARE REBEHE FrAREZAN L FEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
Particulars of registration and ownership interest
Name issued share capital operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments 50,0008 &Rk & 13T RBEIHSE 50 RERR
Limited Lk
50,000 ordinary shares of British Virgin Islands Investment holding
US$1 each
ERERERAT L&R10,0005T &R 50 BRE%

Multi-Minerals Limited

REERE & B 3 Wealth Plus
Developments Limited ( [Wealth
Plus|) (REBRZES M
R RNBEBEE B IERE)
MEEERBRAR (REBT
M 8z By EEe) 9%k
B50% (ZZE—HF:50%)#
7= © Wealth Plus R BTR E R B R
RNRAIZEBEBH R RIREZER
RBEAE S &RTHERRE
EiRMtEzEa SR BEF
BFTHER 2 %A - fWealth Plus
REREEREBRAREZEHRFH
BRERHEECRIREEER
HEBZEE -REEBMBER
HERFNHR  ZEECERHS
HRAEELE WEFEAERE
RERE B E AR

Ordinary shares of HK$10,000

Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores
The Group has 50% (2015: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”), a
separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in Hong Kong, and Multi-Minerals
Limited, a separate structured vehicle incorporated and
operating in Hong Kong. The primary activities of Wealth
Plus and Multi-Minerals Limited are investment holding
and trading of mineral ores respectively. The contractual
arrangement provides the Group with only the rights to
the net assets of these joint arrangements, with the rights
to the assets and obligation for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement resting primarily with Wealth Plus and Multi-
Minerals Limited. Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements
are classified as joint ventures and have been accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.
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bk

Th -REERFRZE

(&)

REBZEKRE E D ¥EWealth
Plusk H 2= & KE A A ([Wealth
Pluste B | ) 2 BT & BHEZ A K
B AREBLLRE M BHRE 28R

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The summarised financial information of Wealth Plus and its
wholly-owned subsidiary (“Wealth Plus Group”), a material
joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
amount included in the Group's consolidated financial

HEB 2 HENT statements are as follows:
Wealth Plus £ E
Wealth Plus Group
2016 2015
Fi# T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RANA=+H As at 30 June
JEMENE EE Non-current assets 2,353,626 2,538,640
MENEE Current assets 60,913 29,591
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (2,123,691) (2,014,652)
mENB & Current liabilities (202,867) (117,217)
STALAFRIEZIER ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
BehBReER Cash and cash equivalents 29,623 4,411
BB E (TEEES K Current financial liabilities (excluding
H b e FRIB) trade and other payables) (126,110) (25,668)
JEnEaE (TeEHMEN  Non-current liabilities (excluding
SRIA R ) other payables and provision) (2,123,691) (2,014,652)
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2]

T -REELRZHER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(4&) (continued)
Wealth Plus & &
Wealth Plus Group
2016 2015
F#ET FHETT
HKS$'000 HK$000
HEEANAZTHILEEE For the year ended 30 June
& Revenue 87,481 =
FR(FEE), EF (Loss)/Profit for the year (223,554) 83,442
Hibh 2w Other comprehensive income (128,071) 5,651
2= AARE Total comprehensive income (351,625) 89,093
FTALMFRIEZIHE Included in the above amounts are:
e R Depreciation and amortisation (316) (100)
FEHA Interest income 170 =
B Interest expense (40,309) =
FrisfiiEe, (FHxX) Income tax credit/(expense) 71,428 (28,981)
HAEBREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's
HE 25 ¥ AR interests in the joint venture
BEECEERME Net assets of the joint venture 87,981 436,362
REE 2 BERER Group's effective interest 50% 50%
REBELEEEDE Group's share of net assets of
BESE the joint venture 43,991 218,181
HER: Represented by:
EihEeErEEESRE Share of net assets of the joint venture 28,148 203,960
RIEHEEDFELE Deemed capital contribution to
the joint venture 15,843 14,221
REEE Carrying amount 43,991 218,181
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Th REEEFZER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
REEFERGERFEZHBE Financial information of the joint venture that is immaterial
#} to the Group:
2016 2015
F#ET F#ET
HK$000 HK$'000

FEREGELHEZIREEE  Carrying amount of immaterial

joint venture 5 5
T R4 A Profit for the year = -
H 2w Other comprehensive income = -
ZHENRERE Total comprehensive income = =

"+ At EZEMEE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS

2016 2015
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000

ETRARE R ATE: Listed equity investments, at fair value:
Bt Hong Kong 7,519 8,062
E i@ (k@) Elsewhere (note (a)) 2,890 1,006
10,409 9,068

FEETIRAIRE - HA A Unlisted equity investments,

(FFE)) at cost (note (c)) 19,092 19,092
B A Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
11,984 11,984
Bzt Total 22,393 21,052
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(o))

Zt - AHHEZEMEE
()

(a)

RZZE—ZTFHA=H"'&
ArEl—HEEZEREA
AIERERBR AR ([E
B ) E2Famous Key Holdings
Limited ([Famous Key | -
—RHAREBREZHSEM
K ZBRAA BHAR
ARTESFRE=ZEFEL
(TlRBL2E#HE)T
7 B F %  bA[AFamous
Keylt 85 & #£2,239,873
fEMacarthur Minerals
Limited ([MMS 1) B& 3 °
@ B - =B 75 EEMinmetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(IMinmetals | » —ER &
BHMKZz BRAR)ET
YR —MMEEHZHE AR
Minmetals{ #53,144,6540%
MMSH% {5 > MinmetalsE =
PR S NN )
TESF EXLMHE K
RKEGEGHE EBR_F
——F=ZA=1+HEBMH
Famous Key & MinmetalsZ£1T
AJ AR S 4% - LATH (E3.0500
7t (185 124.3547%7T ) FERK
E 5,384,527 R MMSE& (7 ©
MMSE—BRMNEXRZ R
ZRIER ST L R=NA
A A FEEBRRNEMNA
HMERAEAESZHTERE
B2 EERAME -

RBEE-_FT—XREER_-F
—HEANA=ZTHILEFE:
REINZ ETRAIRETE
AB TR -EEZRAE BH
HRIEB R EMBRAEZED
AR I F A 18 s T RR R
B &5 8457,0008 70 (=&
— 7 : 4,834,000/ 7T) °

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk
(“Dr. Chan”), an executive director of the Company, to
acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares of Macarthur
Minerals Limited (“MMS") from Famous Key. On the same
date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale and
purchase agreement with Minmetals Mining Corporation
Limited (“Minmetals”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, to acquire 3,144,654 shares
of MMS from Minmetals. Mr. Fang Gang, a director of
Minmetals, was previously a non-executive director of the
Company. Having satisfied the terms and conditions of the
aforesaid agreements, the acquisitions of the 5,384,527
shares of MMS were completed on 30 March 2011 at
the market price of Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to
HK$24.354) by the issue of convertible notes to Famous
Key and Minmetals. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and its
principal activity is exploration and development of an area
with significant prospective iron-ore located in Western
Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market values of
listed equity investments in overseas during the year ended
30 June 2016 and 2015. The directors consider that such
a decline indicates that the listed equity investments have
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$457,000
(2015: HK$4,834,000) has been recognised in profit or loss
for the year.
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4 AIftHEZSREE  20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

(%) ASSETS (continued)
Hiet: (&) Notes: (continued)

© Ik LT RANIR B =K AR (© The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
WERES R RRERE provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
7815 & NS BB T % R market prices in an active market and the range of
B BEAFECEEMBEH reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and
BEREEFZHEHEEE the probability of the various estimates is significant.
ANBt - EFERBAFE Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that the
TREAIEMFAE - RBEZ fair value cannot be reliably measured. There was no
T RNFRZZT—HFA movement in provision for impairment in respect of
=T+ HIEFE FIEKAZ unlisted equity investments at cost during the years ended

I ETRARE 2 MERE 30 June 2016 and 2015.

—+— . EEEREE 21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
it Fi&T FET
Notes HKS$°000 HK$'000
AR EE Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449
Hth &= HA fE W SR IE Other long-term receivables (b) 700 700
12,149 12,149
B Provision for impairment (12,149) (12,149)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R &Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—REFA=THILFE

0]

“+— - REIEWEIE (@)

RS FRREREREE=

o

=

AER-B—AFAA=T

HIEFEILEES -

Wizt :

(a)

—_+=-

R=ZT—R"E~A=1+H
A E011,449,0008 L (=&
—F 11,449,000/ 7T) 2
HH IR+ 7,828,000 T
— & — f 4 :7,828,000/8
L) BEEF - BB RARC
TT—F+A—BESTHE
5% - H #£3,621,000/8 7T
(ZZ— A %F:3,621,000%
TL) REEE R B RAR
—EE-F=-A+ABED
TEFHMB-ERNBREER
AR BERAEFEEE
2 ER(E

RZE—ARFA~A=1+H"

ZESHBGT HEPIRER
7],2700,000/ 7T (=& —H
£ :700,0008 ) BRRE
o ZPRBARLS  EIKER
ARZZT—~FAA=TH
BE ERRERERRZ
B RBRE BERAESE
EfEH2mRE.

BERPW=E

21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

There was no movement on the provision for impairment of
long-term receivables during the years ended 30 June 2016
and 2015.

Notes:

(@) Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
June 2016 (2015: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2015:
HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable
by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October
2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2015:
HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
13 annual instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. In
view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full
impairment was made in prior years.

(b) As at 30 June 2016, the balance represents a shareholder’s
loan of HK$700,000 (2015: HK$700,000) advanced to
an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on 30 June 2016. In view of poor financial
performance of the investee company, a full impairment
was made in prior years.

22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHREEE Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 546,497 -
FH 28 1) 2 i Transfer from investment
(MEE+75) property (note 16) = 506,700
NE Additions 26,810 37,747
BRI Z SRITERF B Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7)
(FfeEt) 3,536 2,050
FRIEEEH Carrying amount at end of the year 576,843 546,497
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"+ BERBYE @)

AN+ NFrER M RBEC
T-—RENA=ZTHLEFE
506,700,000/ 7T 2 1% & ¥ 5 &
BREMEERERRERAYE-

RZE—R"FE~AA=FTH &K
& B BRE £ %8 2576,843,00078
o0 (ZZ—FR 4 : 546,497,000/
T ZBERRMECHER (E
RAEBERRITEE 2HEH M
(MFEE=+ )

22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2015, investment property
of HK$506,700,000 was transferred from investment
property to property under development as detailed in note

16.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s property under

development with a carrying amount of HK$576,843,000
(2015: HK$546,497,000) was pledged to secure a bank

borrowing granted to the Group (note 28).

“t+=- 55 23. INVENTORIES
2016 2015
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
R % Raw materials 83,960 75,434
H 2K o Work in progress 4,943 6,679
BIRY om Finished goods 132,896 136,370
221,799 218,483
—+m - B S EWEKIE 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
F#ET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
=) AR Trade receivables 121,020 144,926
B EUGRIRR B R Less: provision for impairment
of receivables (27,789) (28,546)
B 5 I FRIE — 55 Trade receivables — net 93,231 116,380
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“+m - EZEWFE &) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

AEE—RZRITREIIREE

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers

(@)

BEPZEE BRCHELAEEF
HMEREFIRFPZEEGRK -84
EFOREBREER -AKHE
BIEHEREE R IRE SR
RiEH -BmHREA R EEE
EHETERN -

RifE B8 MERBEEREE
SR A2 E P RUGRIEZ R
e Afran T

according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of
the sale, is as follows:

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

0-30H 0 — 30 days 30,544 45,901
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 22,771 27,905
61-90H 61 — 90 days 12,571 14,330
90H M Over 90 days 27,345 28,244
93,231 116,380

BR B FE48. 3FTH FE B SN - AR
EEERERF H AU R -
RESEWGIENS @ WESSP
EERRK -

Save as disclosed in note 48.3, there is no concentration of
credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group
has a large number of customers which are internationally
dispersed.
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—+m - EZEREIE @) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
RS BH - IR R EEAEE The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at
RIEZEE 2 B ZEUBGIE 2R the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,
BRI ¢ is as follows:
2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
R HA IR AR R E Neither past due nor impaired 61,506 74,088
#HA0 - 308 0 - 30 days past due 15,775 20,765
#HI31 - 60H — 60 days past due 7,656 10,516
#HI61 — 90 H — 90 days past due 3,777 2,329
#HI91 — 180H 91 - 180 days past due 4,354 8,348
#8181 — 365H — 365 days past due - 38
#HA3658 M £ Over 365 days past due 163 296
93,231 116,380

BERBE AR B 5 Rl
EH T 5 T R R SR
TRAEF -

EEHMERREZ B S BKFIR

WhZRENEEARFENKC

BZTRATEF -REBEER
EEERE RN EEERLE
EXEE RERNEIEI 2R
Yeml - i e F AR
E R AREYEH D A S
BRBEZEZREFERFEE
AERREERLEMEER

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements in respect of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired.
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“+m - EZEWFE @) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

—
N

B 2 RAMIR R ERRE A5
fRERALER  FRIFARER /W
ZEDRUGRIAZ MERE - £
HERT REBREEZRAE
2 IR IE M 35 - B 7 & WA

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

BEREZZBHNT impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015

F#ET FET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FUREER Balance at beginning of the year 28,546 28,274
R BEEE Impairment losses recognised 260 401
BB 2REBE Impairment losses reversed (803) =
PE 2 Exchange difference (214) (129)
F R Balance at end of the year 27,789 28,546

REREEH AEE2EHE
YR IR IR M8 ) Ko B2 78 B R BE TE JRL
18- ERIRE 2 B 2 EWRIE S
RERYBENRZIES -

RAREEFRA RBREBEH
TERIR —F AR E 2 & 5 EIGK
B A HEEERESET RS
RER ARZEERBNER
A 51 B o

At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of trade receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception at the reporting date.
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ZHE - UAFEAR S
ZEMAE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2016 2015
Fi&T FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BELTIRAZ S wmE Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong, at market value 4,222 6,026

EHRAESRZ A FESERS
HEAREERMISAR TE
BEE -

e

ARFEAABRRZEREER
FARERERAKEEL A

2NREEESESH D -

AT B AIRRZ SRHAE
ATEBBA B2 H AT
N

Fair value of the listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted market prices at the
reporting date in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating income in
profit or loss.

R ReERFREERH 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRBFRBEUATHD Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:
2016 2015
Fi#&T FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
e MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 45,632 55,641

RITRESRE BRITERF KR
HUZE)RIS

AREMEERR RITHRESZA
FEEEEMESBEIEERNE
2 -AAHEBREREARIHE-

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.
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D

A BReRReEH 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(%) (continued)
RZE—ARFNA=1+H & As at 30 June 2016, the Group had cash and bank
BUAARESEZR S RIETT balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounting
48R #17810,442,0008 70 (== to approximately HK$10,442,000 (2015: HK$6,803,000),
— F 6,803,000 7C) ' A 8 which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
TRIAE T AHR B R B 2 SR1TERAE in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
FLEHFEF ARBIWIHETERL Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
]z B B IE P B KBESNEE and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
BB B 458 P M A TE B 32 of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
FTE - A B ] R E R 1T exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
HNEZEIS 2 RITIFARE LB A authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
HNEE o
—+t - EHEMNFIAE 27. TRADE PAYABLES
2016 2015
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
B S e IR Trade payables 126,705 140,397

B SN FIBZ EE R E fE
7 [8) 4 P& 71 P 198 °E < {6k 3R i
Rl Rk BE - AEEREE
FHEZEFENRIBZERERSD
IR UENE

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
on the invoice dates, is as follows:

2016 2015

F#ETT FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

0-30H 0 — 30 days 37,358 62,313
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 25,082 29,121
61 -90H 61 — 90 days 17,717 13,978
90H KA Over 90 days 46,548 34,985
126,705 140,397
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"+t ESEMFE @) 27. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

BEHRNREBREHLEE
th EERREZRNKA K
HEEREEQNFEBES-

Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
considered to approximate to their fair values.

—+)\ - SRITERK 28. BANK LOANS

RITEFFEASBE2OMAT :

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as

follows:

2016 2015
Fi#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
mEAE Current liabilities
HAR—FRNEEZ Portion of loans from banks due
RITERH D for repayment within one year
— B ER — Guaranteed 41,648 59,388
—FEAREER — Secured and guaranteed 504,400 408,098
546,048 467,486
AR —FREETSHE Portion of loans from banks due
RENERIEX 2 for repayment after one year
RITERHH which contain a repayable
on demand clause
—FER — Guaranteed 25,500 1,148
571,548 468,634
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(o))

—+I)\ - SRITEFR @)

28. BANK LOANS (continued)

NENA=1TH #§17

—~ At 30 June 2016, the bank loans were scheduled to repay as
ENEHERENT follows:
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RITERK: Bank loans:
AR—FNEE Repayable within one year 546,048 467,486
HARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 4,500 1,148
ERE=ZEFRF Repayable in the third to
(BEERME)EE fifth year, inclusive 21,000 -
571,548 468,634

A B AR R IR TR] LR
KA RREE BT EMIR

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment

EREFIEX 2T E -

RZE—RNFERZZF—RAF A
=+H ’ZK%@Z@ETT1;EF‘]$§
M5B B (BRI, ER

@ AXEEBKH@EMBEAD
472,930,000/8 T (==
—HhF: 446,040,000/
TC) 2R B HE 2 EER
0 (HEE+75)

by XN&EEKB@TMBELD
576,843,000/ 70 ( — &
— H F : 546,497,000/
TC) ZBERBPMEZIEE
B (fE=+=)

dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
of any repayment on demand clause.

At 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group's banking facilities
were secured/guaranteed by the followings:

(@) legal charges over the Group’s investment
property with carrying values of approximately
HK$472,930,000 (2015: HK$446,040,000) (note
16);

(b) legal charges over the Group’s property under
development with carrying values of approximately
HK$576,843,000 (2015: HK$546,497,000) (note
22);
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—+I\ - RITER @ 28. BANK LOANS (continued)
RZE-—RFEFRZZE—AFN At 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group's banking facilities
A=+H8 A&EBEZRITEER were secured/guaranteed by the followings: (continued)
BHTYIEB EERER:

(#&)

(©  $EEMIE(a) R (b)FF it #% (0  assignment of rental and sales proceeds over
ﬁ%%&?‘@‘?%%Z%ﬁ the investment property and property under
& M ERTSKIA development in notes (a) and (b);

(d) KN &£ B mE Y (d) legal charges over the Group's leasehold land and
14,136,000 T (=& buildings with carrying values of approximately
— h % 16,357,000/ HK$14,136,000 (2015: HK$16,357,000) (note 14);
TL)ZHELIRIEFZ
AR (1)

e =& & k& E 4 (e)  legal charges over the Group's land use rights with
1,341,000 L (=& carrying values of approximately HK$1,341,000
— A £ : 1,377,000/ 7T) (2015: HK$1,377,000) (note 15);
2 T A 2 JATEIRED
(MEE+E)

(f) K AN \B & v 2 () corporate guarantees of HK$695,028,000 (2015:
695,028,000 7T (=& HK$694,248,000) executed by the Company; and

— H % : 694,248,000/
TL)RRIER: &

(9 ARR—EEEZENEB (9)  ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned
NG -3l & subsidiary of the Company.

RZZE—RFAA=FH" R The banking facilities as at 30 June 2015 were also
EERENAFRIEFTERET guaranteed by the Government of the Hong Kong Spedial
KB BB RTTEUR BT 2 IR Administrative Region, under the Special Loan Guarantee.
VEFELR

AREB BT EZRITER The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
571,548,000 T (=& —H HK$571,548,000 (2015: HK$466,736,000) have floating
F : 466,736,000/ 7T ) Z;“ﬁbi interest rates ranging from 1.22% to 3.23% (2015: 1.24%
RENF1.22%%E3.23% (= Z to 3.93%) per annum. As at 30 June 2015, the RMB bank
—ARF:1.24%%E3.93% ) c A= loan of HK$1,898,000 had floating interest rate at 6.38%
TE-RFNA=TH AR per annum.

77 B 1,898,000/ 7T 2 /¥ B) F
HR 56.38% o
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o8]

Z+h - EHEERE 29. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

AEBREERREXBHEER
BE-R-FE-—RFXA=TH"
REREREZ RRREREN

The Group leases motor vehicles for its normal operating
business. As at 30 June 2016, the total future minimum
lease payments under finance leases and their present values

BB REBENT were as follows:
2016
=REE RIEHEE REHEE RIEHEE
ARRE (RE¢L AR E ez
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
FET FET FET FET
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
—FR Within one year 379 a1 359 421
—FHEMER After one year but within two years 691 722 1,070 1,143
1,070 1,143 1429 1,564
R B R % R Less: Total future interest expenses = (73) = (135)
HEEKRE Present value of lease obligations 1,070 1,070 1,429 1,429
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B EMEE

=+ - BHREARNKIEA

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

2016 2015
F#E T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mEEE Current liabilities
JERTRA:E AR ZIE (MizE@))  Due to related companies (note (a)) 2,744 3,099
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
JELTRAE A RIZTE (MiFE(b))  Due to related companies (note (b)) 165,346 82,161

(@) JE <P RR3E A B3R IE2, 744,000
B (= g — R F :
3,099,000/ 7t ) & & 1K 7
k&S  HEPEMEMNTIE
WHIEEZEREGR AR ([E
W RETAEEEEEA
8 ) 381,751,000 7T (=
T — F 4 : 1,897,000/ 7T )
R=ZT—+tFHA=+/H
(ZE—RF: ZT—XF
AR=+"B)FHEE-
EREMNEHESERA
Al (RIETAEEZEEA
8) 7 I8584,0008 T (==
— F £ : 759,000/ 7T ) A =
TE-XRNELtA-+t-H(=
T-—AE:—T—RFLA
—+=8)3HESE R EM
/IFEJ/EL%@%f@F%Eﬁ
FRAR (HRIELH#ES ) 08
409,000/ 0 (= E—AF:
443,000 L) R =% —+
FWA=—+—H(=ZZE—*
F: _sﬁf*ilﬂﬁ:Jr*
B) R EE

Notes:

The amounts due to related companies of HK$2,744,000
(2015: HK$3,099,000) are unsecured and interest-free,
of which an amount due to BN BRI EAZAEGR
A7 (“f8%"), which Dr. Chan is a key management
personnel, of HK$1,751,000 (2015: HK$1,897,000) is due
for repayment on 26 May 2017 (2015: 26 May 2016),
an amount of due to /N E$E 5 HFR A F], which Dr.
Chan is a key management personnel of HK$584,000
(2015: HK$759,000) is due for repayment on 22 July 2016
(2015: 22 July 2015) and an amount due to ;T P95 52
Bk b E 3 R A FR A 7], which is owned by Dr. Chan, of
HK$409,000 (2015: HK$443,000) is due for repayment on
21 April 2017 (2015: 21 April 2016).

Xe)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %15 B RS S HizE

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—REFA=THILFE

O

=+ BHREARNKIEA

(&

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

wiaz: (&) Notes: (continued)

(b)

R-_TE—XR"E~A—HB &
ERAERE—EREEA
FR #27,250,0007C (#H%5 R
31,814,000/8 70 ) Z & Z
ANEERE—S—NERA
A=t—H-Z&@BHEZA
8 B R BT 2 B S5 B AR [
ZEEERN T —RNEN
A—BHBRERSE WS
2,222,000/ L il %8 2
EEBERSEEREE
TE—RNENAZTHLEFE
B AR - B EHRR
18 2 BR T & %E27,788,000/%
ot (ZZF—H 4 130,632,000
BL)REER 22 RR
—ET-hFERA=+—H
(ZE—hF:ZT—tF
AA=+—8)FHEE"
MEFBASEXRATSF
FELT5% (Z T —RHF
6.15% )5t & o

FEfT —RE A A E (B
&+ Propway Limited (
RARHITESE/NESE
BB ZB)ZEESE
30,000,000 T (= —H
& : 4) % 60,000,0007 T
(ZZE—hAF :8B)RER
D RRENE21% K
24%ET B RN RN —+
FHA=Z+HAR-_ZT—tF
NA=+RHEHEE-

(b)

On 1 June 2016, 184 a related company, renewed the
maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount of
RMB27,250,000 (equivalent to HK$31,814,000) to 31
May 2019. Gain on debt extinguishment of HK$2,222,000
was resulted from the difference between the fair value
of the renewed debt and amortised costs of the original
debt on 1 June 2016. The gain on debt extinguishment
of the said amount was then recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2016. The carrying amount
of the amount due to 184 of HK$27,788,000 (2015:
HK$30,632,000) is unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 May 2019 (2015: 31 May 2017). Its
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 4.75% (2015: 6.15%) per annum.

The carrying amount of the amount due to a related
company represents the amount due to Propway Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an
executive director of the Company, of HK$30,000,000
(2015: Nil) and HK$60,000,000 (2015: Nil) are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 2.1% and 2.4% per annum and due
for repayment on 30 July 2017 and 30 September 2017,
respectively.



Annual Report 2016 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—R"FRA=THIFE

=+ - BABREARE
(%)

Htat: (&)
(b) (%)

RZE—R"FEA~A—H"
f83E A AFamous Keyi§ —%
R B A U EEMMSER ()
(MM =+ (a)sFut) 2 7
BREEMELEZASE
58,170,000/ Jt & 15 2 &I|
Bt —ZT—h&E=A
=t—H -BEBEBEZATF
EEREEZBHEK AR
EFEYHPR T —NEN
A—BEBEEBREEKES
7,632,0008 7 il 9 EE 2
B R E RS AR IEZA
BARHERIE MizREE
ABIHERBKRRERE L&
BIEH - ARARMITEEMR
B AZEERARZER
#EAB A o [ fFamous KeyiX
18 2 BR T & 5847,558,000/%
L (ZZE—HA % : 51,529,000
BIL)REER 28 ER
—E-NFE=A=+—8
(ZE—RhEF: ZFT—+tF
—A=+—H)3HES"
MEASBELIEATSF
FEK734% (ZE—FHF:
7.17% )5t & -

=t+—TEEMIA

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) (continued)

On 1 June 2016, Famous Key, a related company, renewed
the maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount
of HK$58,170,000 to 31 March 2019, which was
originally arisen from a convertible note in connection
to the acquisition of shares of MMS as detailed in note
20(a). Gain on debt extinguishment of HK$7,632,000
was resulted from the difference between fair value of the
renewed debt and amortised costs of the original debt on
1 June 2016. The gain on debt extinguishment of the said
amount was then treated as a deemed capital contribution
from the related company, which was ultimately held
by Dr. Chan, the controlling shareholder. Dr. Chan, an
executive director of the Company, was also a beneficial
owner of this related company. The carrying amount of
the amount due to Famous Key, of HK$47,558,000 (2015:
HK$51,529,000) was unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 March 2019 (2015: 31 March 2017). Its
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 7.34% (2015: 7.17%) per annum.

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS
2016 2015
BE =L BE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fi#x Fi#x TR THET
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Forward currency contracts 99 - - (16)

As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the forward currency
contracts were denominated in British Pounds and maturity
was less than one year.
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=+ AR ERE 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

iU 8% Big Bonus Limited &2 &
¥$ /88 A =] (#:#8 [ Big Bonust
B ) T 2 TR EE

RZZBZAF+—AZ+HB K
X Al ELBenefit Well Investments
Limited ( [Benefit Well | » —f#
RBEZHESHMEKLIZER
AR HRETHEEZERSR)
AIVEEREHZ ([EEWRE]) -
LAY BE Big Bonus& B 2 100%E,
1T IR AN K Benefit Well T e £
Z BB E 3K ° Big Bonus®E B =
BT A TE R B K B B R R )
REERFE - REBEEEH=REK
HER-ZZAF+—A=+
Hzfrha DalkiEsE
2 #21X {8 /738,000,0007% It
# LA IR & X f8113,000,0007% 7T
N 3% 8 3% 17 7N & #2325,000,000
BT R ER ([ATRRE
%) &3 174 $£1,764,705,880
A% 7~ < #8300,000,0007% 7T 2 X
BERONDZN -RZTEZTNFE+—
A =18 ' & 7] ELBenefit Well
Rl R ([mamaEl)

PMERT R B & TR & 514 -
BIEET AR ER T Tamar
Investmentsify 2EBenefit Well (5
R HE)

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Big
Bonus Group”)

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”) with
Benefit Well Investments Limited (“Benefit Well”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan,
to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Big Bonus
Group, which are principally engaged in mining and
exploration of mineral reserves in the Mainland China, and
the shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well. Pursuant to the S
& P Agreement and the supplemental agreement dated 30
November 2009, the total consideration for the aforesaid
acquisition is HK$738,000,000 which is to be satisfied
by cash consideration of HK$113,000,000, issuance of
convertible note with principal amount of HK$325,000,000
(“Convertible Note”) and issuance of a total of
1,764,705,880 consideration shares with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 30 November 2009, the Company
entered a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) with Benefit Well to amend and clarify certain
terms and conditions, including issuing the Convertible Note
to Tamar Investments instead of Benefit Well, as detailed in
the Supplemental Agreement.
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=+ BB ER#) 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

U B&Big Bonus Limited )2 &
Ki/® A & (#:%8 [ Big Bonust
B 1) FraiT 2 T RIRERE (&)

ABRBERBEZESF1.5% M=
BT ARNESFNNA=THZR:
XA BBRERSSBRBRBRERN
(&Rt 1)0.198 7T - W&
TTEHE3FERE BB

RZZE——F+A+=H &R
A)[A Tamar InvestmentsZ17 2| £f
AE-Z—MNE+A+—H A
F 16 4127,619,0007% 7T 2 7] #
REE - {E AU EEBIg Bonust
ZED B

A#BERE A HEEBERD
ZRVERZz 28 (ARERFE
INSDIE StV vy ki
RS ) 5t ABCER #E 2 51 AT #2
SRR EE-

RZZT—WFE+ANA [k
ZE#E A ATamar Investments?T
E AR AR 2 Ha R o UL -
ARABR-_ZE—ME+A+BZ
71,710,526,3 108 #2 AR A% 17 ©

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Big
Bonus Group”) (continued)

The Convertible Note was issued at interest rate of 1.5%
per annum, payable in arrears on 30 June in each year,
at a conversion price of HK$0.19 per conversion share
("Conversion Shares”) which would be mature 3 years from
the date of the issue.

On 12 October 2011, the Company issued the Convertible
Note, which would mature on 11 October 2014 with fair
value of HK$127,619,000 to Tamar Investments as part of
the consideration of the acquisition of Big Bonus Group.

The difference between the fair value of the Convertible
Note and the fair value of the liability component,
represented the conversion option for the holder to convert
Convertible Note into equity, was included in shareholders’
equity as convertible note equity reserve.

On 9 October 2014, Tamar Investments, the holder of the
Convertible Note, exercised the conversion rights of the
Convertible Note. As a result, the Company had issued
1,710,526,310 Conversion Shares on 10 October 2014.
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=+ BB ER#) 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

iU 8% Big Bonus Limited &2 &
Mt &) (#:#8 [ Big Bonus&e
B T2 RREE (&)

REBEE-_ZT—RFA=1+HI
FE AIRRBEZITETAY
o BEIHS RERTS ZRE
(ERUNNE

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Big
Bonus Group”) (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the carrying values of
the derivative component, liability component and equity
component of the Convertible Note were as follow:

BEEEE afREs BaEHn st
Redemption Liability Equity
option component  component Total

TRAT THT TAT TRAT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000

RZE-—NELA—AY Net carrying amounts at 1 July 2014

RIE# R - (4,924) (116,034) (120,958)
EHMSRFY (ML) Imputed interest expenses (note 7) = an = 7
AEREMERFELZ Coupon interest payable classified

FERRE TS as other payables - 4,995 - 4,995
TERRETERATER  Exerdse of conversion rights and

converted into ordinary shares - - 116,034 116,034

RZZE—AFA=FTHZ  Netcarrying amounts
REFE at 30 June 2015

B EmRA - Bt SEK—
HIEEEARBEZTHERBER
S-BLHBEARNRBEHAE S
E—FEF—-A-F+HHZBEX
EARBDRR T —FF =
A+—H —ZE—ZFA=+
H-ZZE—ZF+—A+hB"
—E-—FAA+ABR=F
——F+ A+ -BHTEZAER
W o

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company’s
circular dated 25 January 2010 and in various Company's
announcements made on 11 February 2010, 30 April 2010,
19 November 2010, 19 May 2011 and 12 October 2011.
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AJA—RRIT A X = AG] 3 1
FORNDBB—EEEREY
2EMBARFMILASEAA
R #470,000,0007T (FHER 4
582,800,000/ 7t ) Z R1TE E
BEREIM S ERE L - ERE
MIRTEZIRH ABHEa 1A
HAF -ZBERHBEHRAAE]—
HATHEREERS BHEE
—SHBREBRA-T—=F
T—ANBZRAEREE-

R=ZZT—WHE+A=+H &R
AILA—MRITAZ AR S —
DiHZE RABEF —REED
¥ BB ARG ASE
& AN R #200,000,0007T (%
M #J252,800,0005% 7T ) 2 EE 4N
RITEERERUMBERSE
o ERABBIMRITEERE
R BHBTALRA=F %
TR GERARNE—IHEB THE
*%’ﬁﬁ%—iﬁl REHA
—mFE+A=THZRAERA
?)32&5°

=+= - UHiEREAR 33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
2016 2015
F#ET TF#ET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
mEAR Current liabilities
— B EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities 3,411 3,086
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
— B EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities 2,245 4,115
5,656 7,201
RZEBE—ZF+—HANB X2 On 8 November 2012, the Company, entered into an

agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility in
a principal amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$582,800,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee period
lasts for a total of five years from the date of grant of the
bank loan. This transaction constituted a discloseable and
major transaction of the Company and further details was
disclosed in the announcement dated 8 November 2012.

On 30 October 2014, the Company, entered into another
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of an additional banking
facility in a principal amount of RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$252,800,000) entered by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee
period lasts for a total of three years from the date of
grant of the additional banking facilities. This transaction
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company and
further details was disclosed in the announcement dated 30
October 2014.

ul
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=1+=  HMHBEREaE @ 33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

(o))

R-ZB—XE=ZA+—8 £&2Q
AIA—MRITAZEARI LS —
inE RAERX—HEaEh
¥ 2EWB AR NASE
A AR %110,000,0007T (%
M #7132,000,0005 7T ) 2 8 17
EERERBVBREREL &
REARRITEZE L A B4
HAHAF ZBERXIBEHAR
A—HATEERS B@E—
SHBERBPE-_ZT—~E=A
+T—BZAEAEE-

FRLa—HaErEZE
EMBAREESERME TR

TZMBER ARAB &
BERGHRBELBEHZATE
B # AR #9,879,0007T (#H %
®12,405,00008 L) * AR ¥
1,436,0007T (8% 701,816,000
Bor) &k AKR®1,360,0007T
(8% 1,622,000/8 7T) B8
EE —HEELELE (M&F
THh) ABREREELEZRE
mRESRE Rk FiEsE
TERE ISR RN ER BT
ERAEE RIBTERRL A
% MBERABESERITER
EREARNBEHEZRA -

(continued)

On 11 March 2016, the Company, entered into another
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility
in principal amount of RMB110,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$132,000,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee period
lasts for a total of five years from the date of grant of
the bank loan. This transaction constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company and further details was
disclosed in the announcement dated 11 March 2016.

In relation to the aforesaid financial guarantees granted to
a bank over the repayment of a loan by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of a joint venture, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts at the dates of grant of approximately
RMB9,879,000 (equivalent to HK$12,405,000),
RMB1,436,000 (equivalent to HK$1,816,000) and
RMB1,360,000 (equivalent to HK$1,622,000), representing
a deemed capital contribution to a joint venture (note 19),
had been adjusted to the carrying amount of the interests
in joint ventures and simultaneously, the said amount
was recognised as financial guarantee liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequent to
the grant dates of the bank loan, the financial guarantee
liabilities were amortised to income over the bank loan
guarantee period.
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=+ ERRERHZE 34. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING

N SHAREHOLDER
2016 2015
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
ERRERRE CERK Loan from a controlling shareholder 131,670 153,060

RZE—XRNFNA=ZTH &
8+ 2 —%127,000,000/%
7T (ZZ — A % : 148,000,000
BLIZER ZEXRABER
HRARFEH K1 5% 80 Hf
90,000,0007% 7T % 37,000,000/
TARR=ZE—tFNA=1+H
RZZTE—tF+ARBEHE
# (Z—Z — F 4 :90,000,000/8
7T ~ 50,000,000/ 7T % 8,000,000
BTN =E—tFNLA=+
B ZZ2—+tF+ARB K=
T—+tE&+A=F+—HEHE
i#) o 5 —% AR¥4,000,0007T

— R4 : AR%4,000,000
7t) (#8%14,670,000/8 T (=
= — A 4 :5,060,0008 7T) ) Z
EFNERELBN ZERAE
EEPB RERR_FT—LF
+A-+REA(ZE—AF: =
T—+F+A=Z+FHAB)FHE

o

A

As at 30 June 2016, loan of HK$127,000,000 (2015:
HK$148,000,000) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum, of which
amounts of HK$90,000,000 and HK$37,000,000 are due
for repayment on 30 September 2017 and 5 October 2017,
respectively (2015: HK$90,000,000, HK$50,000,000 and
HK$8,000,000 were due for repayment on 30 September
2017, 5 October 2017 and 31 October 2017, respectively).
Another loan of RMB4,000,000 (2015: RMB4,000,000)
(equivalent to HK$4,670,000 (2015: HK$5,060,000)) is also
advanced from Dr. Chan and is unsecured, interest-free and
due for repayment on 25 October 2017 (2015: 25 October
2017).
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35.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
the current and prior years:

WE BER
B R
FEREUR
HREEZ
NTERE
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and i e
equipment, HEHE MIEEE
land use  Accelerated Provision
rights and tax for A5t
mining right  depreciation  receivables Total
FBT FHET FBT FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
RZZ—MF+A—H 2% Balance at 1July 2014 245,437 (260) (5,849) 239,328
B 5 Exchange realignment 1,150 - = 1,150
WERES (%)% (Credited)/Debited to profit
or loss for the year (76,725) 91 86 (76,548)
RZZE—A%E~A=1+HERE Balance at 30 June 2015
ZE5-A5tA—HZ&# and1July 2015 169,862 (169) (5,763) 163,930
B 5 3 Exchange realignment (13,103) - - (13,103)
RERER (%) /0 (Credited)/Debited to profit
or loss for the year (9,104) (21) 254 (8,871)
RZFE—A"E~A=1+HZ Balance at 30 June 2016
g 147,655 (190) (5,509) 141,956
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35.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

(continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2016 2015

Fi#T FET

HK$°000 HK$ 000

RIERRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 147,718 169,862
RIERIBE E Deferred tax assets (5,762) (5,932)
141,956 163,930

REBAXEHRBEIRED
166,140,000 T (Z & —H
4 1 141,049,000% 7T ) ' ;2 E B
HEBARAREBEHEEEZEN
HEBZ AR ZARRER G
Fl o EER K A] 88 B R SR IE SRR
HAABRAZERBATIES
B BRI RRZEEEERE
EHBEE - RBAHEEE
74,966,000 7L (Z T — A F:
66,462,000/ 7T ) BBV E T
T F(ZE—RFE:E_F
F) (BEZF) TR AHE
B o H 2K B A 154 TH E5 18 AT B PR

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$ 166,140,000
(2015: HK$141,049,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$74,966,000 (2015: HK$66,462,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2021 (2015: 2020). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

O
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SHARE CAPITAL

BT @R AR FE AN 2 EEhan The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during
e the year are as follows:
2016 2015
LERHE LakEAE
Number of Number of
izt ordinary FET ordinary FET
Notes shares HKS'000 shares HK$ 000

BETRER: Issued and fully paid:

READ At beginning of the year 6,831,182,580 560,673  5,110,656,270 442,555

RBAREEEEHRE Shares issued upon conversion

BIRH of convertible note @ - - 1,710,526,310 116,034

HEBREETERZITRD  Shares issued upon exercise

of share options (b) - - 10,000,000 2,084

RER At end of the year 6,831,182,580 560,673  6,831,182,580 560,673

Biat Notes:

(@) REBEZZT—RAF A=+ () Details of the conversion of convertible note for the year
HIEFEERAIMRER ended 30 June 2015 were set out in note 32.
HBEEHRMFE=T=-

(b) REBEZZT—RAF A=+ (b) Details of the exercise of share options for the year ended
HIEFEITHERE 2 5515 30 June 2015 were set out in note 38.

A E=T N\

=1+t - #E 37.

REH

REB 2 AFERBAFERHE
FEBEES s CREELEERE
BRET

HAiuREE SN B A B Z B8
F*/\*’\ﬁﬁiHZﬁ{“éﬁiﬁNﬁlﬁ%éHW
HlEaE AR E M AR R
RO EmREhE cEERARE
ZER-

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the
non-controlling interests.
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¥ N/NE] Company
BhRE FAI R DE eSS
i L R TERG REBEH Bat
Share Non- Convertible Capital
option distributable note equity  contribution Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
RZT—WFELA—HZ  Balanceat 1July 2014
e 2,114 273,606 116,034 14,604 189,389 595,747
FATRRE Conversion of convertible
(HFE=12) note (note 32) = - (116,034) - - (116,034)
FEROARR D AERE Z5RM  Recognition of share-based
(HE=+N) compensation (note 38) 470 = = = = 470
IR Exercise of share options (705) = = = = (705)
BEEAZRS Transaction with owners (235) - (116,034) - - (116,269)
FREF Profit for the year - - - - 12,433 12,433
FRZENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 12,433 12,433
RZZE—-HE/A=THRK Balance at 30 June 2015
ZZ-RFt+A-HZ and 1July 2015
3 1,879 273,606 - 14,604 201,822 491,911
—FEERRRSZEFAE2  Deemed capital contribution
HEARREERS arising from debt
FMEEZRELE extinguishment from
(HFE=1(0) a related company
ultimately held by a
controlling shareholder
(note 30(b)) - - - 7,632 - 7,632
RARDBER 2 Recognition of share-based
BB (HE=1TN) compensation (note 38) 2,390 = = = = 2,390
HEAEAZRS Transaction with owners 2,390 = = 7,632 = 10,022
FRREF Profit for the year - - - - 7121 7121
FN2EREER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 7121 7121
RWZF—RERXA=1+HZ Balance at 30 June 2016
e 4,269 273,606 - 22,236 208,943 509,054
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RATF (#E)

TADKFEHEAR —NLNAEEF
AR EBREERER2.50
A TTHIRZEOC. 10 TTATEA 2R

B

=+/\ - BEiHERE

AR E 2 RERERE ([%ar
FR-_F-—FTFLA+=H
BEARRRRRAE - %82 H
BB+ F-

EFRAMBERAETTIEE
AT EZBREAREA A A
B ¢

0) ARmZzEREE (&
MmEEBEAERRE) SR
THRABREE &2
EX(BREWT FFAT
KB IFHITES) A
A B EHAKE
ZERENEREHERZ

38.

Company (continued)

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising
on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the

ERIARQ TN B AT SE Group; or
IR E R (AESER
) K

(ii) EHIEEF ° (i) any investee.

REEELERBUTZRRE
ONGIEEriS e =2 dark -1k
BH(BARERBE)EMRR
BRERAHUHE R
ARBBRMHNEEREZRELBR
BESR A EEXEEBRAE
B MERARFHWTE -

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.
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=+/)\ -BEBIREE =) 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BERALTHEARESRR LB H
AT EEXERRNEREMNSE
AR 2 - R LR
AR ARAARRR 1B T
REHRE - TEBRIEZ B
2 = ERRE AR P31 T 2 B 48
BIRHEBORABPARFE
BT 210% ; SRR FR
B B B TTARANZ230% ° BRIFER
NABRRPBRAS LHE &
AIPMEMRN2ME A B - 1T R T
BR2EEZERE (BREETT
18 R W RATIE 2 B A ) By 37T
Koo TEEITZ AR B BET
BHREARFRERBEETRAZ
1% °

BREMREREFENRAE
NERERNE S ARA  EZ
HRIAGEREZZE L A A
B AT GBEEEERLAH
EEr+FE2BH-

R_Z—WELtA=-+HHB &
RAREBZEME—REER
££110,000,00017 & f& 8 - 1T &
AFR0.1218 T B R H B
BRI 2 W AR (B A0.120/8 7T

RZZE—RFEAEH AQF
BRZTEMEE FTEERD
40,000,00017 & Ax 4 - 1T (B &
FHR0.2458 - B R B H
AT 2 Y2 B% B A0.2007 7T ©

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 25 July 2014, the Company granted 10,000,000 options
to one of its directors, with exercise price of HK$0.121
per share under the Scheme. The closing share price
immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.120.

On 7 July 2015, the Company granted 40,000,000 options
to certain of its directors, with exercise price of HK$0.245
per share under the Scheme. The closing share price
immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.200.
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38.

RAREEZRHE ZHARITERER

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the outstanding share options under the Scheme
held by the directors of the Company during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2R
EREHR
Number of share options
REH FREH FATE REX
BRITEE At the Granted Exercised At
REARA =) T8 Exercise price beginning during during the end
Name of Grantee ~ Date of grant  Exercisable period pershare  of the year the year theyear  of the year
AT
HKS
2016
BREH TP —mERATNEE
~ATHA 7?7E¢/\H+)\E
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki -~ 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
BREL —Z-mE  —E-MEXATABE
~ATAA “E-MESATNB
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
BER —E-mFE  —E-MELA-tRAE
tAZ+ER ZEZMELAZFWEA
Wong Edward 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Gwon-hing
BRER —E-RfE “Z-AFtAtRE
tAtH _Y_ﬁﬁtﬂxxﬁ
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Bz “T-HE —hEtAtLRAZE
+tHAtA 73735&{)5]/\5
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
g “F-FF -F-EELALAE
+A+H ZZ-REEARE
Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025 0.245 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
BER —E-RfE “Z-AFtAtRE
tAtH _Y_ﬁﬁtﬂxxﬁ
Wong Edward 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Gwon-hing
30,000,000 40,000,000 - 70,000,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BEHA
Number of share options
REA) FERRE FR1E RER
BRAEE At the Granted Exercised At
REAER £ A fTEH Exercise price beginning during during the end
Name of Grantee ~ Date of grant  Exercisable period per share of the year the year the year of the year
B
HKS
2015
BREH 2 “Z-MERATABE
NATHE ZZ-EERATNR
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
BEv —Z-mF “Z-MERATNRE
~NATRA ZZ-EERATIR
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
s “E-mE  CE-WEAATHAE
ANATRA ZZZEERATNR
Yam Tat Wing 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) -
BER “Z-mF —Z-NFELA-TEHABZE
tAZtTEE ZE-MELAZTWEA
Wong Edward 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024 0.121 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Gwon-hing
30,000,000 10,000,000 (10,000,000) 30,000,000

REZE-_FT—RF~A=1+H
IEFE AR EBEELL
EIR T IRR1D0.138 LT fE
10,000,00017 & AR 48 - 4 (3£ &8
4 4 B JERR 2 ) #£1710,000,000
BEBR - REBEE=_T—AFN
A=1TRHIEFETEERER

Z INHEF (B £0.2278 JT °

During the year ended 30 June 2015, 10,000,000 share
options were exercised by Mr. Yam Tat Wing, the director
of the Company, at HK$0.138 per share and 10,000,000
ordinary shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Yam Tat
Wing accordingly. The weighted average share price at the
date of the exercise of options exercised during the year
ended 30 June 2015 was HK$0.227.

ul
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ZINETFEFARE NOFERIF
ZE—RF:9F) -
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EREBRE AFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
options is HK$0.197 (2015: HK$0.132) and the weighted
average remaining contractual life of outstanding share

options is 9 years (2015: 9 years).

The following table lists the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing Model, which is valued by LCH (2015: LCH),
an independent professional valuer, used for calculating

the fair value of the share options granted during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

= HE Date of grant ZE—RF —ET—F

tAtH +A+EAB

7 July 2015 15 July 2014

iz (& Share price HK$0.245# 5t HK$0.12175 7T

1IE(E Exercise price HK$0.245# 5  HK$0.12178 7T

TaERE (FisE@)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 64.00% 61.00%

BB AE 2 TRET S A Expected life of the share options 10 £ years 10 4F years
(Bt &% (o)) (note (b))

b A () Risk-free rate (note (c)) 1.870% 1.970%

SEE YRS
Wt -

(@) TR E - AR RN R ER
H B #AT+F AR AR
Y i (B 2 JEE SRR 1R o

(b) MERRtE 2 TRETSF A : TR
TR RAEHS H 2 B
ﬁ’)@(,ﬁﬁﬁzﬁ °

@ ERRMNE: WHEEREL
SNEE S B2 B RS

Expected dividend yield

Notes:

(a)

Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in
the past 10 years immediately before the date of grant.

Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of

the share options estimated from the expected exercising

Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.
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#%40,000,00010 BB #E (==
— A £ :10,000,00017 B8 A% 4% )
IR B EARNESER B - M ARR (D
7 51 2 M8 78 #R 512,390,000/
7T (=Z — A4 1 470,000 7T.)
ERBE-ZT—<FA=1AH
IHFEEEBENER - ZEmE
TR HEARRE 2 AR 1D AR 2
A S EENBRENER

HESEDT ABRERZE &
RBIAE S S E AR D AR 2
NRRG BUEEREE-

=+ FRBEZMBERIR

&

39.

The 40,000,000 share options (2015: 10,000,000 share
options) vested immediately on the grant date and the
respective share-based compensation of HK$2,390,000
(2015: HK$470,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2016. Such amount of share-
based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
share option had been recognised in profit or loss and the
corresponding amount of which had been credited to the
share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these
are equity settled share-based payment transactions.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
it F#T FHET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets
R BRR 2 e Interests in subsidiaries 1,173,655 1,148,047
A RN e Interests in associates = -
REERE s Interests in joint ventures 15,842 14,221
AR FE I GRIR Long-term receivables = =
1,189,497 1,162,268
REEE Current assets
AR - me & Prepayments, deposits and
E i R U FRIR other receivables 271 412
JE W Bt B8 A R RIE Due from subsidiaries 250,213 129,039
RekReEH Cash and cash equivalents 122 440
250,606 129,891
mENEE Current liabilities
HiEMFIB R EFFEA  Other payables and accruals (4,891) (6,118)
R NG Due to subsidiaries (94,946) (25,406)
HISEREE Financial guarantee liabilities (3,411) (3,086)
TR IR Provision for tax (325) (1,321)
(103,573) (35,931)
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=R (#&) OF THE COMPANY (continued)
2016 2015
it F#T FHETT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
mEEERE Net current assets 147,033 93,960
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
R EENGIE O] Due to related companies (137,558) (51,529)
PERRARER IR 2 B Loan from a controlling
shareholder (127,000) (148,000)
PEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities (2,245) (4,115)
(266,803) (203,644)
BEFE Net assets 1,069,727 1,052,584
HE 7 EQUITY
& As Share capital 36 560,673 560,673
i Reserves 37 509,054 491,911
AR Total equity 1,069,727 1,052,584
KRREZE On behalf of the Directors
PREE 2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
R /) 38 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EBEZE Director
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40. SUBSIDIARIES

RZB-—REXA=+RH FZE Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016
MEBARZFRMT are as follows:
AR/ BHRER,/
AMREE NS BRTRARE FAFEL
Place of Particulars EZED
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of TEER
4 registration registered/issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
EE B
Direct Indirect
EEAMHERAR &R LRR0%ET 100 - BRESRNE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 Diamond trading and
polishing
Brangredi Limited Ab LTRRIBT - 100 %EEHZES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Jewellery trading
C.J. (UK) Limited* 5E 1,000BEREEIRE 2 EBR - 100 HEAMHEE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
BRERERAR B LiBR100%ET - 100 #RES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company Limited &5 T882100,000% 7T 100 - RERR
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100,000 Investment holding
BR%KE (IF) BRARE hEARE B4 R 735,000,000/ 7T - 100 HEAESHRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
BRREEHRMERAT B 3@0%10,000,0007% 1T 100 - REEHRERME
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
and wholesaling
ERERRAR Bk LRkIET - 100  MERE
Continental Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
Continental Universe Limited EREREE WEEREEIZT LRR 100 - RAER
British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
DCGS Management Service Limited B TiR10,000,0008 7 - 100 RERR/REEERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Investment holding/
providing management
services
BERERRAA B T @%50,000 7T 100 - REER
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$50,000 Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited &b THR1,000,005% 7T - 80 HEEMES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1,000,005 Jewellery trading
BRELHARARA B 806,000,000 7T 100 - REER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Factory Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$6,000,000 Investment holding
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ML/ ERERM/
EMREEHY BETRAFE VNN
Place of Particulars EREADI
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of TERH
&8 registration registered/issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
EE E3
Direct Indirect
B TEREARAR HEAR B RHA21,000,000%7 - 100 RRREFRERE
Mainland China Paid up capital of US$21,000,000 Mining and exploration of
mineral reserves
REER (EM)BRARY EAE B AR BRA11,000,000 7 - 100 HEREGRITE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$11,000,000 Diamond trading and
polishing
IFAmELREARAA" B AR BHRRA - 100 HKEEHTE
ARE15,561,3907C
(Z2-1%:
AR 14,968,0007C )
Mainland China Paid up capital of RMB15,561,390 Jewellery retailing
(2015: RMB14,968,000)
Patford Company Limited B Ei1%10,0008 7T - 100 MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Realford Company Limited B Ei1%10,0008 7T - 100  MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
ERRERRAH &R LRERIET - 100 ¥ERE
Well Friendship Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Yett Holdings Limited EREREHS 100REREREIETZ LBR 100 - REER
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Master Gold Development Limited RBRLHES REBIETZERR - 100 HEER
British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
# R BEAEZEMZ I EEE # Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
B Mainland China.
* EREB Y EEZeTME * Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
AR DTS EEE The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
HAibpk B AT = IEf T by BDO amounted to approximately 2% of the Group's
cERERWEATEE total net assets.

FERBEAREEERE
HBELI2% °

A AREEAT - 4B REE Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic
RAE o investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.
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m+ - HEBRRE @) 40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EERA ERAIAREIMNE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
NAEEERFEFANEES AR in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
SEEEFEZBRADBD EF for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
RE REEMHB AR ZFFE of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
SEYERANITLEK- the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
RIZZE—RERZZT—RFKH As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, none of the subsidiaries had
=+8 WEBRRMEEITER issued any debt securities.
BES -
m+— - HAERE 41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REEHAR - BB mE R AR T At end of the reporting periods, contingent liabilities not
HBzRABEWT provided for in the financial statement were as follows:
2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

AlF—MAEDEERIRIT  Guarantees given to banks in

EEREMRARITELZ connection with banking facilities

EiR granted to joint venture 433,769 423,809
RZE—RFESNA=1TH && As at 30 June 2016, the banking facilities granted to the
B Re g ERRITIEL R joint venture subject to guarantees given to the bank by
FEECEER ZRITEERME the Group was utilised to the extent of approximately of
2 &) A £9433,769,000/8 T ( = HK$433,769,000 (2015: HK$423,809,000). Under the
T — HF 423,809,000 7T ) ° guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the banks if
RIBEZ SR - WERTT AR a4 E the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
EHER AIAREEAAERR date, no provision for the Group’s obligation under
TERZEE-RNREEH A the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
REERRB TR HEAREER considered that it was not probable that the repayment of
ZEER BN B AR the loans would be in default.
SERERENZEEELE
e

N
o
=
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N
N

m+= - EARKIE

RI|E A AEEA TIIKRE

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital

2 & AR commitments as follows:
2016 2015
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREERETA: Authorised but not contracted for:
DERWEMERZERPYZE  Properties under development
BTN 2BERPYE classified under investment
property and property under
development 12,135 -
BRI AE R B Contracted but not provided for:
EN S S Property, plant and equipment 3 509
DEREMERZEREFRYME  Properties under development
BRZERTYE classified under investment
property and property under
development 1,350 35,176
MAEE RS EDEMETT  Properties under development
WHRRRENEERTZ classified under investment
BRPYE property undertaken by joint
ventures attributable to the Group 265 45,716
13,753 81,401

m+= - FEHERE

AEBESRERHRBET
HE OB AEYEREIRS-
HE(BESAAES)RET A
R BEEBKTRER  BHN
F—FEE=F(ZF—AF —
FERE=F)RE BABIERED
HENASEEREFHEEAE
BE 2 B e REES

&K

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
(including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate or
with reference to level of business and terms ranging from
one to three years (2015: one to three years), with an option
to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry
date or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords.
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m+= - REBAERE & 43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(continued)

RZZT—AFAA=1TAH &R As at 30 June 2016, the Group had future aggregate

ARG E R E 2 B BB - minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

SERRFEHEERNRAT leases falling were due as follows:

2016 2015
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$000
—F R Within one year 3,039 4,009
F_EERF (BIEHEME) Inthe second to fifth year, inclusive 1,135 2,498
4,174 6,507
M+ REALR S 44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRIAARE B 5 R 5 H M2 5 P Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

BEIN AEERFERNETSH statements, during the year, the Group entered into the

BALRS- following related party transactions.

(a) REBEZE-_ZE—HFA (a) During the year ended 30 June 2015, imputed
=+H Jti& Bt A R interest expenses of HK$71,000 were incurred and
BEIEELEEN A paid/payable to Tamar Investments, which was
Tamar Investments Z [f& 55 beneficially owned by Dr. Chan, in relation to the
F B F 71,0007 7T ° Convertible Note.

Tamar Investments i fR 18
TESHES-

(b) RBE_ZT—XF~HAH (b) During the year ended 30 June 2016, imputed
=tBItEE -3—[ interest expenses of HK$3,662,000 (2015:
BERNREEEERNE HK$3,442,000) were incurred to a related company
i 3,662,000/ 7t ( = of which is wholly-owned by Dr. Chan.

T — F 53,442,000
TT) X BEREARKRE
TREHR-

N
o
W
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H

m+m - REALTRS @)

© REBEE=_Z—~F~A
=t+RLEFE -F—MH
BERRELESETE
F8 521,741,000 7t ( —
T —F4:1,810,000/8
TT) BRIELAZBEER
AICEERFEEEA

;i\o

d REE=_ZF—X<F~A
=+tHLEFE RER
BEEREZERERM
FENBRELZHERH
% 42,080,000/ T (=
T —F % :1,963,000/8
JL) °

) MREBEE-_ZT—X<F~A
=t+tHELEFE BN
N—rREERE 2 A B
% A1,637,0005 7T (=
T—hF:E) - ZHAE
NEIHANRBMITESE
NEREEHER -

®) TEEEABZ RN

SARERAMRAS T8
BEABHMEIE TSI

44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(©) During the year ended 30 June 2016, imputed
interest expenses of HK$1,741,000 (2015:
HK$1,810,000) were incurred to a related company
of which Dr. Chan is a director and key management
personnel.

(d) During the year ended 30 June 2016, interest
expenses of HK$2,080,000 (2015: HK$1,963,000)
were paid/payable to Dr. Chan in relation to the loan
from a controlling shareholder.

(e) During the year ended 30 June 2016, interest
expenses of HK$1,637,000 (2015: Nil) were paid/
payable to a related company of which is wholly-
owned by Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an executive
director of the Company.

() Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and comprise

B : the following:
2016 2015
Fi&T FEIT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RHEE =T Short term employee benefits 14,490 14,352
BERL 212 A Post-employment benefits 502 496
ARG 1D B EE 2 RB  Share-based compensation 2,390 470
17,382 15,318
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M+ REALR S #) 44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(9) Hu B M BT B (9) Included in other payables and accruals, an amount
FA R B IE FE T S 4 1 AR of HK$2,564,000 (2015: HK$4,995,000) was due

A A 5XI82,564,00078 T
(ZZ —H 1 : 4,995,000
B REEKR 28
RBRERER -

to ultimate holding company, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

B 5 + P(a) @+ Mm(b)- The related party transaction in respect of note 44(a), 44(b),

PY =P8 (c)* 7Y +4-P8(d) K PH Y (e) 44(c), 44(d) and 44(e) also constitute connected transactions
?ﬁthﬁL/\tx%)ﬂ%ﬁXtm as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
FAE -+ IAZE T AL E < BE
2o
M+A-FEERR 5 ZH 45. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
EY.‘%,.‘ FZEKXE IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
= OR CONTRACTS

BHFE=+=+=--=+m-
P9+ P9 (a) > P9+ PH(b)* P4+ P
(d) PH4-PH(e) X PU+PU(g)FT# 55
FHN AR B A B B S AT
BHRAR R ZEBEI LI B A
NREEEENIHAERETHEER
BEAERIFMNERARS &5
KAL)

Except as disclosed in note 30, 32, 34, 44(a), 44(b), 44(d),
44(e) and 44(g), no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Company's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial
year.

M+75 GRARERER 46. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
M &EE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REEZE-_ZT—RF~A=1+HL During the year 30 June 2015, the Group entered into

FEAEBR—IBEEER A
EHELH AHEEERTHER
16 B 2 42 & AN{E A&1,244,00078
on

finance lease arrangements in respect of an asset with
a total capital value at the inception of the lease of
HK$1,244,000.

N
ul
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m++ - HE—REMHBAR 47. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

RZE—RAF—ANB &T& On 9 January 2015, the Group disposed of its 100%
mM—Z2BIYE=FHLHEH equity interest of Castle Macao Commercial Offshore
7 Castle Macao Commercial Limited to an independent third party at a consideration of
Offshore LimitedZ100% A% HK$1,500,000. The net assets of Castle Macao Commercial
Az K EA1,500,000%8 Offshore Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

7T ° Castle Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited?A & B Hi 2 %

BEWMT:
2015
TFET
HK$ 000
FE U — i [B R MY B A Bl IR Due from a fellow subsidiary 138
THIBE Provision for tax (204)
(66)
e EW—FRER XMEBRAAZIE  Waiver of amount due from a fellow subsidiary (138)
REBEREERESZ KA Costs incurred by the Group during disposal 443
e —ERB ARz s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,261
BRE Total consideration 1,500
AR & 27 Satisfied by cash 1,500
HEBBEELEZESRAFE:  Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
HERE Cash consideration 1,500
REBR L ERES ZKA Costs incurred by the Group during disposal (443)
1,057
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m+)\ - AR EIE BiE 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

R BUR

AEEZETEZESRTABRER
ARE LT HEEERZE
BB 5 RWGRIA - H b UK
R R RREFH EHEN
IR B A B RIA R EE B
A RITER E— i E R
REERRZER TESRMT
A mEmEfE ENEER
AR BRI 2 B K
MHEREE -ZFERMTAZ
BRI R E - B E R
BT ABRZRARNMBRZER
BZBREN TN - EEEGE
B R ERZEAR  AREREE
R B R TR E 5

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans to a joint venture, trade receivables,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank loans, balances with an
associate and joint ventures, derivative financial instruments,
obligation under finance leases, amounts due to related
companies, loan from a controlling shareholder and financial
guarantee liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

N
~
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481 SREERSREBEER

RAMBARRERRZNZ
REeBSEUATEHE
EXEBAEER - F2
BAFT7E3.12 52315 LA B iR
SR T A 7R 2
HEE®E-

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the
following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities. See notes 3.12 and 3.15 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments
affects their subsequent measurement.

2016 2015
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
ERMEE Financial assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
AL E 7SR EZE  Available-for-sale financial assets 22,393 21,052
B WA Loans and receivables:
— B F—MAEMEEZ - Loans to a joint venture
EEA 664,640 530,200
MEBEE Current assets
LAAFEFFAEZZ  Finandial assets at fair value through
BRLEE profit or loss 4,222 6,026
TSI A Derivate financial instruments 99 =
B R EY A - Loans and receivables:
— & 5 EWFIE — Trade receivables 93,231 116,380
— H b fiE Y F0E — Other receivables 10,534 21,460
—JEUE EEFKIE -~ Due from joint ventures 167 155
—ReERREEH — Cash and cash equivalents 45,632 55,641
149,564 193,636
840,918 750,914
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48.1

BHBR (#)

THREERERMEEER

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

(%) liabilities (continued)
2016 2015
F#T FETL
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLERE Financial liabilities
mEAE Current liabilities
R HEK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
THAaGE: amortised cost:
—Z S EMNFIE — Trade payables (126,705) (140,397)
—E MR RIE R — Other payables and accruals (35,898) (37,647)
JEETE A
—iRITEK — Bank loans (571,548) (468,634)
—JFERIBAEARIFKIE - Due to related companies (2,744) (3,099)
— BB ERIE — Obligation under finance leases (379) (359)
—BEREE — Financial guarantee liabilities (3,411) (3,086)
(740,685) (653,222)
AT EFFAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TRIBME: through profit or loss:
—PTAESRT A — Derivative financial instruments = (16)
(740,685) (653,238)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HHEEK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRaE: amortised cost:
— B E A — Obligation under finance leases (691) (1,070)
—JEfRAERARIZIE - Due to related companies (165,346) (82,161)
—BERAE — Financial guarantee liabilities (2,245) (4,115)
—IERR IR ERIR L 2 B3 — Loan from a controlling shareholder (131,670) (153,060)
(299,952) (240,406)
(1,040,637) (893,644)

N
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48.2 THiERER
() SMEE Bz

SRR 3R RN
EXEHMERD
BMTARKRESR
BZRAFEEHEKS
ZEBR-AEEEE
EEE EEMTE
RELZERK EF
REBARZHAETT
XTI EE TR
ARBEHEREE -
NARBEZ R
EERSBABTE
BN R - T A
REREZERX S
B8 < 7 B K BEFT 8 &
GRS EFN S
Bz SNE R E B R
BETERITA 8
EAHHEZ S BE
E B RWFEAE-
RelkBReFE =
HRNFBRITESR
BMTAE ZFTAMN
XL BT RE R
MTatE-ZEFE
A AEE I EINE
BARBR - EEE
EREERINER

LA
oo
ZoN
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities (continued)

The financial assets and financial liabilities measured

at amortised costs approximate fair values.

48.2 Market risk

()

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, United States dollars
("US$"), British Pounds, Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments
including available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial
instruments which are denominated in
US$, Euro, British Pounds and CAD. During
the years, the Group did not have foreign
currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 TR (&) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
() sMEEEE (&) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

TRBAL =ZF—X
FER-_ZT—H%FH
STERARERE

The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the

DA WNCIE IV functional currency of the respective group
N BEEGTEZ RS companies as at 30 June 2016 and 2015.
ErZcemEERE

f& -

T & T
Expressed in HK$'000
e B 3 i
British
us$ Euro Pounds CAD
RZF-A~"EXAZTH At 30 June 2016
AEEE s SREE Available-for-sale
financial assets 7,753 - - 2,890
B SRR Trade receivables 80,538 1,221 9,913 =
BeRBeEE Cash and cash equivalents 24,742 932 5423 1,158
BAEMTAE Trade payables (102,637) (90) (255) -
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - 99 -
RETER Overall net exposure 10,396 2,063 15,180 4,048
R-E-E%AAZ+H At 30 June 2015
EEE s SREE Available-for-sale
financial assets 7,753 - - 1,006
B S EWHIE Trade receivables 98,012 1,143 = =
BeRBeER Cash and cash equivalents 20,514 353 660 23
BSEMTE Trade payables (84,577) (89) = =
ITESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - (16) -
REFER Overall net exposure 41,702 1,407 644 1,029

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 TR (&) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
() MR (&) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
B 7 3 T B2 T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
8 WA B TER = not expect any significant movements in
TABTZERTE the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
BAEMEANES: analysis in respect of the Group's financial
EERA BAEKE assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
EAREBAFE T E disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
ZEBMEERBESR sensitivity analysis does not give additional
B BEREDN R value in view of insignificant movement in
RERERSE BHZE the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
TR BT 2 ERE date. The following table indicates the
IR WZEHRE approximate change in the Group's (loss)/
o A I B4R IME profit for the year and equity in response to
B-TREBEREER reasonably possible changes in the foreign
¥ HEIAR S B A exchange rates to which the Group has
ZEARR 2 N E significant exposure at the reporting date.
K2 EIBAIEEE -
AEBZFRN (BE)
/v | R h 2 BT Bk
W2 BRI -
2016 2015
MEE juEE
t#/(TH) HERBEZ /(TR HEREFZ
Increase/ 7% | Increase/ b7
(Decrease) Effect on (Decrease) Effect on
in foreign loss for B in foreign profit for B
exchange rates the year Equity  exchange rates the year Equity
FET FET TET FET
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT Euro +5% 103 103 +5% 70 70
5% (103) (103) 5% (70) 70)
B Briish Pounds +5% 759 759 +5% R 3
5% (759) (759) 5% () (32
mr CAD +5% 58 202 +5% 1 51
5% (58) (202) 5% (1) 651)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m 275

For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE-ZT—

NERAZTHIEFE

Annual Report 2016 “F

B EMEE

m+/\ ~ BA% JE B E 38 AR

BHBR (#)
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REBRAA
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REHZ2EZEEBEER
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the
fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, or available-for-sale.
The board of directors manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z-—RFRA=THILFE

N
D

m+)\ ~ BHEEEEEE
BEHR #)

48.2 ThiZRER (&)

(i) RAESESE (&)

R=—ZZFE—FH
=+ 8 WRAER
EFA (FE)10% M

%ﬁﬁm """"" ERAE R
.k

— AEBZFEA (B
B) % A R
()8
422,000 7T (=
T—RF M
URA) 49603,000
BIT) W EE
B AR FER
AEBEZZEBE
EMIREB AT
&

- BRFALXEKHE
AHEhE SR
BEEZ ETEAN
&ﬁZQ?ﬁﬁ

% (%amﬂ%
M) #5357 Ok
4) #91,041,000
/E 7E ( TE—F1

FEm OB
9\)%’9907,0005’%
JL) ©

ERBURE DT TR
RN mE B RHRE
REPMETE LB
EREAEBENZAB
ZERE-

AEEBBEFEIA
K—HET %ﬁh$
ERER 2 BE
wu% DZ : BZ ﬁ )d.(

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2016, if equity prices had
increased/(decreased) by 10% and all other
variables were held constant:

- the Group's (loss)/profit for the
year would decrease/(increase) by
approximately HK$422,000 (2015:
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$603,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and

= the Group’s equity other than
retained profits would increase/
(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,041,000 (2015: increase/
(decrease) by approximately
HK$907,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
investments included in the Group's
available-for-sale financial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings.
Majority of the bank borrowings are
arranged at variable rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting
dates are disclosed in note 28.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the (loss)/profit for the year and retained
profits to a change in interest rates of +100
basis point and —100 basis point (2015:
+100 basis point and —100 basis point)
with effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group's
bank balances and interest-bearing bank
borrowings held at each reporting date
which are subject to variable interest rates.
All other variables are held constant.

2016 2015
FET TFET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
i A% = FH100E B If interest rates were 100 basis point
(Z=—Hh%F: (2015: 100 basis point) higher
1005 &)
FN(BERFE), Net (loss)/profit for the year and
A FARB ST retained profits decreased by 2,605 (1,941)
i 1 2 T Bk 1005 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZE—R%F: (2015: 100 basis point) lower
1005 %)
FN(BERFE), Net (loss)/profit for the year and
FER K AREE R AN retained profits increased by (2,605) 1,941

4 55 8 1 3B 12 4 [ A
H— B AT ERAE
B 2 B R A
HEREER

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
are considered to be effective.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.3 Credit risk

EERBEERTAZR
SETRERESRTA
ZIEREITERME €K
SEXZMHERZE
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RIBME LR TE » b Sh - R
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EEER

R-ZZE—RNE~NA=1+
B AEEEEERBRSE
¢Z\ﬁ,%ﬁfw$
E£E/AE344% (—F—F
i 31.0%) 2 B S5 EHK
RIER B A EBRE - &
E HELREEURE S
MEADE 2 ER—R&
REF -

EREERBRERZIE
N KRB ZEERR
DENEZRZZGHFRE
F o AEBTARERS
PARSERE MDD + — PR
BRT—REEEEEET

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivables at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the board of
directors considers that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 34.4% (2015: 31.0%) of the
Group's trade receivables which were due from
one of the Group's largest customers within the
design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of the
jewellery and diamonds segment.

Save as the aforesaid concentration of credit risk, the
Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number
of counterparties and customers. The Group is also
exposed to the credit risk of the contingent liabilities
in relation to the financial guarantee contracts
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint

—EMEENB AR 2% venture as detailed in note 41 to the consolidated
BRENEBZIAEE financial statements.
EAZEERE-

ReMRITHRBZEER
2RBSEFRHEETR
ZRITMAS LRI

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.3

48.4

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’
exposure to credit risk arising from long term and
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in
note 21(a), none of the Group's financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
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m+)\ - AR EIE BiE 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUER (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
484 REE£EMKE (&) 48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
BRMEARTA 2N Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
BT 2 R E KB FRIEX repayment on demand clause which can be
ZIRTTERME - DiT# exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
TRERETERERED shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
BEZRIR ESGR RN RRER in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
ERAEAAEASYEE the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
L AR 2 B R HR to call the loans with immediate effect.
e
RHFRHR —&EpE

RERELE —Ens  BORRE
Total ZEXEE  Morethan

FEEHE  contractual Within 1 year but mEMN £
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years

TEx TEx FEx FE7 FE7
HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS'000

RZFE—REANA=1H Asat30June 2016

FiiEemMaR: Non-derivative financial liabilities:

B HRMATE Trade payables 126,705 126,705 126,705 - -

EfENFERESER Other payables and accruals 35,898 35,898 35,898 - -

BEHERE Obligation under finance leases 1,070 1,143 a1 722 -

BITEH Bank loans 571,548 571,548 571,548 - -

EEEDRFE Due to related companies 168,090 184,988 2,744 92,260 89,984

BRRRERE2EFR  Loan from a controling shareholder 131,670 134,051 1,905 132,146 -
1,034,981 1,054,333 739,221 225,128 89,984

SR ZMBER: Financial guarantee issued:

BRAEREHE Maximum amount guaranteed 5,656 433,769* 433,769* = =

N
—
O
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

BHRER —EHE
HemenE —FR%  EORREE
Total  BREREER More than
RESE  contractual Within 1 year but MEE
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 2 years
TET TE7 TE T T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
RZF-E57~A=1H Asat30June 2015
FiTEEMER: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
EHREAFE Trade payables 140,397 140,397 140,397 - -
EthENFIERIESER Other payables and accruals 37,647 37,647 37,647 - -
BERERE Obligation under finance leases 1429 1,564 m 1,143 =
BIER Bank loans 468,634 468,634 468,634 - -
FEREENRAFE Due to related companies 85,260 95,743 3,099 92,644 -
ZRRERE2ER  Loan from a controling shareholder 153,060 158,065 2,220 2,220 153,625
886,427 902,050 652,418 96,007 153,625
T ERMaE: Derivative financial liabilities:
ITESRIA Derivative financial instruments 16 16 16 - -
BEYBHBER: Financial guarantee issued:
BAERERE Maximum amount guaranteed 7,01 423809 423.809* - -
* fis SR 17 K g€ 1 121 A * The Group would be liable to pay the bank if the

BER AIAEEA
AERRITERZE
o

bank is unable to recover the loans.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

TR BIREFER
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The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year or on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown
above. Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

HB AT -REREEFANHSMEREXRERG XL RITET
Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

AHEER —ENE
ReNBEE —ERE  BORTE
Total KEXEE  Morethan

EEHE  contractual Within 1 year but mEMN £
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years

TET TATL TETL AT TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000

RZF-AEA~A=1H Asat30June 2016

BITER Bank loan 571,548 585,800 558,890 5273 21,637
RZFE—-RERA=1H Asat30June 2015
RITER Bank loan 468,634 479,241 478,088 1,153 -

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the instruments and
derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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m+)\ - AR EIE BiE 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUER (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
485 REESHBERRRERZ 48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
RNEEFE (F) consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
TREERBEREMS The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
AZ A EREER Ty the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
BEH AT EFEARSE entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
AEEZHEERBAE is significant to the fair value measurement. The
B - NiZa MBI &R financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
BEATHEFECERMEE in the consolidated statement of financial position
KBERATERBEZS are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
BT
F1E #2E $3JE @5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAL FHET FAT TAL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(HizH@) (HizE()) (K@)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

RZF—AEAAZ+H Asat30June 2016
e SREE Available-for-sale financial assets

~ERBEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 7,519 - - 7,519
—TEBIN L ZIRAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 2,890 - - 2,890

BIEEEZ EM&EH:  Listed securities held for trading:

~HEBRBLEMZRAESR - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 4222 = = 4222
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 99 - 99
14,631 99 - 14,730

WZE—-REAA=+H Asat30June2015
e SREAE Available-for-sale finandial assets

—~EBB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 8,062 = - 8,062
—EBSNETIZRAES -~ Equity securities listed in overseas 1,006 = - 1,006

BEBE 2 EMES:  Listed securities held for trading:

—ERBLMZRAESR - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 6,026 = - 6,026
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments = (16) = (16)
15,094 (16) - 15,078
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48.

49,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(a) Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their market prices at
the reporting date and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate.

(b) Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

(©) The Group’s financial assets classified in Level 3
use valuation technique based on significant inputs
that are not based on observable market data.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.
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AEEEREEEARE  YAE
REBERNE AR - DR
SFBEARE  AREAAE
A B SR S A 2 BB R B RAR
BERLBEITHRD -RAFE
FAEFEE AEEMEFENE
= BREREF-

AEEZRAEAAGBEL R (AME
BEBR AR D AEMNERF
B)ERER -BERFBIUNERE
FATEARMNRFTR 2 $RIT S EL AR
BERERRENReFEAE -
AEBEEE/ERA B RGH
REBEKF-BERA AKHE
RifE A2 ERNR B RgR
REEKF - RREAAZEE
BELEMNT:

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio was
maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The
gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

2016 2015
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mEaE Current liabilities
|ITENK Bank loans 571,548 468,634
JE R D Al kA Due to related companies 2,744 3,099
EREaE Non-current liabilities
Rl NETE O] Due to related companies 165,346 82,161
ZRRAR R IRt 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 131,670 153,060
BIHABEE Total debts 871,308 706,954
B BRe RIS ER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (45,632) (55,641)
BIE 55 Net debts 825,676 651,313
0 g Total equity 1,723,941 1,998,071
e M FE R B TR H R Total equity and net debts 2,549,617 2,649,384
EE&REILE Gearing ratio 32.4% 24.6%

N
N
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

51.

(a)

On 9 September 2016, the subsidiary of Wealth
Plus entered into a facility agreement (“Facility
Agreement”) with a bank to provide a term loan
facility of RMB773,300,000 for refinancing its
existing loan facility. As a result, the Company
was required to provide a financial guarantee of
RMB386,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$448,514,000), representing up to 50% of the
new facility, to secure for the due and punctual
performance of all obligations of the subsidiary
of Wealth Plus under the Facility Agreement. The
details of the provision of financial guarantee were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
9 September 2016.

On 19 September 2016, the Group had entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party relating to a disposal of 100% equity
interest in Well Friendship Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which holds
the Group’s investment property and property
under development, at a total consideration of
HK$1,133,500,000 subject to certain adjustments
upon completion of this disposal transaction.
Further details of this transaction were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 21
September 2016.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30

June 2016 were approved for issue by the directors on 28
September 2016.
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BRPYE PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
a4 73
B4R g HA bR EE HREEE RAZ b ERER &R B FE ki
Estimated
approximate Attributable
Approximate gross floor Lease Stage of Estimated interest of
Lot No Location site area area Use term completion completion date the Group
(FAR) (FAR)
(sq ft) (sq ft)
Wit E18675% BB 236224257 2,137 32,040 EE =3 ERLED “Z-RENA 100%
A ER 5518695 ©
Wi F 18715 AR
REEH A AR
WHER 55187257 BARR
REER S
Inland Lot No.1867, 236 - 242 Dex Voeux Road Central 2,137 32,040  Commercial Long Construction in ~ September 2016 100%
Inland Lot No.1869, progress

the Remaining
Portion of Inland Lot
No.1871 and the
Extension thereto and
the Remaining
Portion of Inland Lot
No.1872 and the
Extension thereto

BREWME INVESTMENT PROPERTY
st L K&
1 B4R & BAtRER “emER AR itk i R fhstEREH g 5+
Estimated
approximate Attributable
Approximate gross floor Lease Stage of Estimated interest of
Lot No Location site area area Use term completion  completion date the Group
(FAR) (FAR)
(safo (sq ft)
AHER 518675 E8518H23622425% 1,112 16,659 ¥ =3 R ZZ-RENA 100%
M 518695%
I3 ER 55187157 BARR
REEHR B AR
Wit F 18725
RERSHS
Inland Lot No.1867, 236 — 242 Dex Voeux Road Central 1,112 16,659  Commercial Long Construction in ~ September 2016 100%
Inland Lot No.1869, progress

the Remaining
Portion of Inland Lot
No.1871 and the
Extension thereto and
the Remaining
Portion of Inland Lot
No.1872 and the
Extension thereto

No
N
~
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

E RESULTS
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
FET FEr FEr FET FET
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Wz Revenue 552,575 730,900 868,103 949,215 955,712
BRETEHLA (B518) /E A (Loss)/Profit before income tax (186,055) 65,158 51,971 87,660 215,020
FiEHiEe/ (FAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 10,363 76,179 (1,232) (1,303) (2,494)
FR(BR) /5 (Loss)/Profit for the year (175,692) 141,337 50,739 86,357 212,526
JEr Non-controlling interests 26 234 (159) (510) 2,368
ARAEEAER (BEZH) Net (loss)/profit attributable to
/R the owners of the Company (175,666) 141,571 50,580 85,847 214,894
EE -BERIEEHESR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
FHET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000 — HKS'000  HK$'000
BB E Total assets 2,954,644 3,097,489 2,866,683 2,758,770  2,634.216
wafE Total liabilities (1,230,703) (1,099,418) (1,020,457)  (973,362)  (988,598)
FEFE R A Non-controlling interests 6,156 6,130 5,896 6,055 6,565
1,730,097  2,004201 1,852,122 1,791,463 1,652,183
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